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OUR MISSION

In striving to become a world leader in the consumer electronics arena, we
pledge to serve customers with innovation and quality services, operate an
efficient organization to create value for all stakeholders and honour our
responsibilities as a good global corporate citizen.
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AFER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:
Lau Sak Hong, Philip
Lau Sak Kai, Anthony
Lau Sak Yuk, Andy
Lau Chu Lan, Carol
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Hon Sheung Tin, Peter
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Ho Hau Chong, Norman
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Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

AUDIT COMMITTEE
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Hong Kong
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EIRBES

Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip
ZIH R a4
Chairman /%

BUSINESS REVIEW ¥ o g
Results E

The Group's performance for year ended 31 March, 2010 continued & ZE2010F3A31HILFE @ 2HREEFEZTRE N
to be affected by the prolonged global economic recession and EBHX4EE  BEZEREBKRIE - AVEET
slow recovery. Lack of confidence in the consumer market and 5ELTERKEEEE B AREBE S - KEEH
fierce pricing pressure from customers resulted in a decrease of & 2 %Ef#1,281,000,0003 7T 5 4> £738,000,000
42% in turnover of the Group from HK$1,281M to HK$738M and BT » JIEE42% + WERE AR A REA AFEEFE
a net loss of HK$67M attributable to the owners of the Company.  #867,000,0005% 7t (20094 : ;% E518110,000,000
(2009: net loss of HK$110M) BIT) °
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRBES

Electronics Division

The Group’s two major markets, North America and Europe were
slow to regain their economic stability and consumer confidence.
Unemployment was high throughout these regions during the fiscal
year. Consequently, sales to North America decreased by 33% and
Europe by 59%.
competition from the brand name manufacturers. These manufacturers

Our marketing effort was made difficult due to

reduced their prices in order to maintain their turnover. After their
price cutting, the differential between a brand name product and
our product was so small that there was no price incentive for
retailers to carry our products in their stores.

We experienced gain in sales of the LCD high definition television
sets in North America during fiscal 2010. We attributed this gain
to that the North American households are finally ready to switch
from their old CRT TV to digital TV. If our assessment is correct,
we expect a good opportunity to regain our turnover focusing on
the digital television market.

Our gross profit margin decreased by 3% in fiscal 2010. Due to
the global recession, we decided to close out a lot of our inventory
kept in the warehouses in North America. This move was necessary
to free up the financing costs and reduced the storage costs in
warehouses. We estimated that the close out factor accounted for
half of the drop (1.5%) in the gross profit margin in fiscal 2010.
Other factors attributable to the decline in the gross profit margin
were fierce pricing pressure and a slight increase in our cost structure
due to higher labor and material costs throughout the year.

Selling and distribution costs were reduced by HK$62M and
administrative expenses by HK$37M, of which HK$17M was from
salaries and wages of the administrative staff. We will continue
to monitor our overhead expenses as part of the effort to regain
profitability of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EIRBES

Securities Trading

The Group recorded a segment result of a profit of HK$8.2 million
of the year.

Prospect

The speed of recovery of the global economic condition has been
slow and has severely affected our performance in fiscal 2010.
We however, remain positive on the outlook of our business. In
April 2010, we entered into an exclusive licensing agreement with
Polaroid for a period of 5 years with options for two additional
renewal terms. This license gives us ready access to compete
with other brand name manufacturers. Under the agreement, we
have rights to use the Polaroid brand name on a wide range of
electronic products; the major categories include TV, DVD, Blu-Ray
DVD, portable DVD, DVD home theater systems, E-books readers
and Ipod docking stations. So far the response has been favorable
from our retail customers.

Sensing there is a great demand for digital TV in North America in
the future years, we will launch the LED TV in August 2010. We will
32" TV to suit the smaller households and
meet the demand for the second and third bedroom in the family.
After this launch, we plan to introduce Blu-Ray DVD with the LED
TV as a combo unit or as a stand alone unit to the market. We

be targeting the 19" -

have also been able to strengthen our sales force in US by hiring
two ex-Polaroid sales executives to our sales team. We are pleased
that we have regained a few major accounts recently offering our
Polaroid LED TV.

In May 2010, we launched an open offer of our shares to shareholders
to raise approximately HK$72M in cash to finance the Polaroid
project. We expect the offer will be completed at the end of July
2010. We will continue to reduce our inventory to provide additional
working capital for our operation which will be further streamlined
to reduce our administrative and overhead expenditure.

While we are cautiously optimistic about the global economy, we
believe we are on track to improve our performance in the future
years.

HEEE

RAFE - AEBSEDIPEL EF8,200,000/8
7_Eo

BE

EHREEEHEE BEFYEALSE220109KE
EZzRE  EBRMDBFRREBRI = - 12010

FAR - ANEEEPolaroidr] B RS R -
REARF - WAIEAIMER o BRI Z ISR ﬁﬁﬂ
HEEM RRRERRE 2B - RIBZ =

MEESEZEEFEMEAPolaroidzmE® - £

TEMBRAEESEE  DVDE - Y DVDH - F
EADVDHE - mm%Ewm,A~%%§ﬁ%%&

lpod FRE - 25 RIL FREMMBXTERFRS

BE o

BRARBFLETSHHEBERM 2 F RS -
B R2010F8 A LLEDE R - HPIiG = #
19232 ERE - WHEERBES/NERESH -
WAMEBREARBEEAZFE K - Hig - BMErEIEL

EMGHHEXDVDE - BELALEDERBIEARES
ERSIEAEBERMEE - I BRATEARSA
PolaroidAlfEHHEHE » BUIRAEZHEEE K 2

B o #tPolaroid LEDEAR#%E - RFREOBE
MEEFAUTE  BESAMRE -

M2010F58 AEEMABRRAHEERNESE
©#172,000,000% 7T - AR SPolaroidIB B Pk
B o HHEEFEBEKMN201057AKTEK - 5%
EHEERITS  UARNEEEBRHBIEE
Be - Ui —TREEEER  RBIETHREBE
FIsk -

BPHEREESERELBREE
RBFARE 2 RABELITHE -

BHRMEE - K

“E-ZEFR AHNEBRAERIF 05

/

/



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETRBES

FINANCIAL POSITION

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The financial position of the Group remained stable. As at 31 March
2010 cash and deposits amounted to HK$80 million, as compared
to HK$104 million last year.

Gearing ratio calculated as total borrowings to shareholders’ funds
was 0.36 (2009: 0.49), and net bank borrowings to shareholders
funds was 0.23 for the year (2009: 0.33). Current ratio calculated
as current assets to current liabilities changed to 1.46 from 1.43

last year.

Financing and Capital Structure

The Group finances its operations by combination of equity and
borrowings. As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s total borrowings is
about HK$219 million (2009: HK$326 million), of which the whole
amount is repayable within one year. Net borrowings, calculated
as borrowings less net bank balances and cash, is HK$139 million
(2009: HK$223 million).

The Group’s transactions were mostly denominated in US dollars
and Hong Kong dollars. The exposure to exchange rate risk was
insignificant.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2010, the Group pledged certain assets and liabilities
with carrying value of HK$32 million (2009: HK$46 million) to secure
general credit facilities for margin accounts with brokers.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had no contingent liabilities.

STAFF

As at 31 March 2010, the Group had a total staff of 1,804 of which
1,709 were employed in the PRC for the Group’s manufacturing
and distribution business.

The Group provides employee benefits such as staff insurance,
retirement scheme, discretionary bonus and share option scheme
and also provides in-house training programmes and external
training sponsorship.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S PROFILE

EERSREEAEEH

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Philip Lau Sak Hong, aged 63, was appointed executive
director of the Company on 26th September, 1989. He is also
the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company. He has
been in the Group for 40 years and over 40 years of management
experience in the electronics industry. Mr. Lau did not hold any
directorship in other listed public companies in the last three years.
Mr. Lau is also a director in a number of subsidiaries of the Group
of the Company. He is the brother of Mr. Anthony Lau Sak Kai,
Mr. Andy Lau Sak Yuk, Ms. Carol Lau Chu Lan, Mr. Eric Lau Shek
Hung and Mr. Jacky Lau Sek Hoi who are executive directors and
senior management of the Company.

Mr. Anthony Lau Sak Kai, aged 60, was appointed executive
director of the Company on 26th September, 1989. Mr. Lau has
been in the Group for 38 years and is responsible for the Group’s
overall production management in China and also in charge of
the research & development of the Group. Mr. Lau did not hold
any directorship in other listed public companies in the last three
years. Mr. Lau is also a director of a number of subsidiaries of the
Group of the Company. He is the brother of Mr. Philip Lau Sak
Hong, Mr. Andy Lau Sak Yuk, Ms. Carol Lau Chu Lan, Mr. Eric Lau
Shek Hung and Mr. Jacky Lau Sek Hoi who are executive directors
and senior management of the Company.

Mr. Andy Lau Sak Yuk, aged 60, was appointed executive director
of the Company on 26th September, 1989. He is in charge of the
research and development of the Group and has been in the Group
for 38 years. Mr. Lau did not hold any directorship in other listed
public companies in the last three years. Mr. Lau is also a director
in a number of subsidiaries of the Group of the Company. He is
the brother of Mr. Philip Lau Sak Hong, Mr. Anthony Lau Sak Kai,
Ms. Carol Lau Chu Lan, Mr. Eric Lau Shek Hung and Mr. Jacky Lau
Sek Hoi who are executive directors and senior management of
the Company.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S PROFILE

EEREREEAEEH

Ms. Lau Chu Lan, Carol, aged 61, was appointed executive
director of the Company on 23rd July, 2010. She has of 33 years
of experience in financial management, business consultation,
financial and regulatory auditing. Ms. Lau serves as an Interim
Chief Financial Officer and Chairwoman of the Board of The Singing
Machine Company, Inc., and serves as Chief Financial Officer of
Cosmo Communications Corporation, which are subsidiaries of the
Company and both are registered as public listed companies in
the United States. Save as disclosed above, she did not hold any
directorship of other pubic listed company in the last three years.
Ms. Lau is the sister of Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip, Mr. Anthony
Lau Sak Kai, Mr. Andy Lau Sak Yuk, Mr. Eric Lau Shek Hung and
Mr. Jacky Lau Sek Hoi who are executive directors and senior
management of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Hon Sheung Tin, Peter, aged 69, had been an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 1988 and re-designated
as non-executive director of the Company on 28th September, 2004.
He has been practising as a solicitor in Hong Kong for over 40
years. He retired as Senior Partner of Messrs. Hon & Co., Solicitors
& Notaries since 1st April, 2008 and remains as consultant. He is
a director of Starlight Industrial Holdings Limited and The Singing
Machine Company, Inc. where both are subsidiaries of the Company.
He resigned as an independent non-executive director of Automated
Systems Holdings Limited in August, 2009. He is a member of audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Norman Ho Hau Chong, aged 54, was appointed independent
non-executive director of the Company on 1st October, 1998. He is
a member of audit committee of the Company. He holds a Bachelor
of Arts degree from the University of Exeter, and is a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accounts in England and Wales, a Fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over
23 years of experience in management and property development.
He is a director in CITIC Pacific Limited, Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings)
Company Limited, Lee Hing Development Limited, Miramar Hotel &
Investment Company Limited, Shun Tak Holdings Limited and Vision
Values Holdings Ltd (formerly know as New World Mobile Holdings
Limited), all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ho
resigned on 1st July, 2009 as director of Taifook Securities Group
Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

B12E L+ 615 N201067A23BEZHER
RAFRRITES - BRUBER  WESHR M
BREERAHTEBEE3I3FLEH - ZlL T HEThe
Singing Machine Company, Inc.Z & B B 7% 42
ENEEGEEILETCosmo Communications
CorporationZ 548 - MR ARHAALRNTFZ
MEA AR AR ERZMA LT AR o Bk EXXATE
BEI BRBEAZFATELTEM ETARE
ER  BIRBULTARRFZHITEZTRSEE
BABRIBERSEAE - BIHHEE - BIBRTE - 2
858 50 & R BI85 )8 5 £ 2 M Bk o

FHITES

BHEMBLE 695  RN1988FHEZERARA
BUEBMITEE - HIEMN2004F9A28AEMZE
ERRABIFNITESE - RERERM - REBRE
FBIBA0F o MR 2008F4 A 1 HBEFRELREM
BERERA  WNBEERBE - BINAH
£BEAMRAF EThe Singing Machine Company,
Inc. (ARARFRMBEAR)2ESF - KHX200958
ABEEBRAEEERARZBIIFNITEE—
B WARRAREREZESRFWEEGNE -

BYFHITESE

AIEHEE - 5458  RAMN1998F101HEZE
RARBIBIIFRNITESE - RAEARAEZELZER
KB o AL EEHUniversity of Exeter B+
B TRAREEABBINSHETMAEE®E
ERGHMAGEREE - MEEABB23FER
MMEBRER -MELERBTEREERAA &
Bim(RE)ERAF - FIEERERAE - XB
ERECEERAA - FEREEBR DT KVision
Values Holdings Ltd (RIfE¥T i RBEIERER A
FAZEE  ZEARHREZMET - AlEER
2009F 7RV EHBHEMI R EFTA AR ARBRES S E
ERAFIZEST B -

08 Starlight International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010 /\



N

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S PROFILE

EERSREEAEEH

Mr. Chan Chak Chung, aged 52, was appointed director of the
Company on 30th September, 2004. He is an Independent Non-
executive Director. He is also a member of audit committee and
remuneration committee of the Company. He is a qualified accountant
with about 29 years in the public accountancy profession. He holds
a Master degree in Business Administration. He is an associate
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of United
Kingdom. He did not hold any directorship in other listed public
companies in the last three years.

Mr. Winston Calptor Chuck, aged 54, was appointed director
of the Company on 30th September, 2004. He is an Independent
Non-executive Director and a member of remuneration committee
of the Company. He has been practising as a solicitor in Hong
Kong over 28 years. He holds a Bachelor Degree of Arts from
University of Ontario, Canada. He is also an independent non-
executive director of ITC Corporation Limited, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lau Shek Hung, Eric, aged 54, a brother of Mr. Lau Sak
Hong, Philip, is a Director of a major subsidiary of the Group. He
is responsible for the Group’s Colour TV manufacturing business.
He has been in the Group for 14 years and has over 21 years of
experience in the electronics field.

Mr. Lau Sek Hoi, Jacky, aged 51, a brother of Mr. Lau Sak Hong,
Philip, is a Director of a major subsidiary of the Group. He is holding
a science degree from one Australian university and is currently
responsible for the Group’s material sourcing, purchasing and control
activities. He has been in the Group for 25 years.

Mr. Wong Kai Wai, Tony, aged 61, joined the Group as General
Manager in 2005. He started his career in the audio and video
manufacturing business since 1967. He was formerly a director
of a television manufacturing company listed in Hong Kong. He
supervises and coordinates different divisions of the Group.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S PROFILE

EEREREEAEEH

Stephen R. Brothers, aged 66, is the Vice President of Sales
and Marketing for the Company, and is responsible for sales of
DVD, portable DVD, DVD home theater systems, and I-Pod related
products in the United States.

Prior to joining Starlight, Mr. Brothers, served as President of
Apex Digital, a manufacturer and distributor of DVD and TV
product throughout the US. During this period, Mr. Brothers was
responsible for Key National accounts, and was heavily involved in
product development. For most of his career, Mr. Brothers worked
as a manufacturers representative in the Middle Atlantic area,
representing a number of Consumer Electronic and IT manufacturers.
Mr. Brothers graduated from the University Of Virginia, and holds

a bachelors degree from that University.

Mr. Man Chi Kuen, aged 46, joined the Group as Chief Financial
Officer in 2009. Mr. Man graduated with bachelor degree in business
administration from Chinese University of Hong Kong and with
post graduate diploma in financial analysis from University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Man is CPA of various US states and in Hong Kong, and
is CGA of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Man has 25 years of extensive work
experience across Canada, US, Hong Kong and PRC.

Gary Atkinson, aged 29, joined the Singing Machine Company, Inc.
in January 2008 and was appointed as the interim Chief Executive
Officer in November 2009. Mr. Atkinson is a licensed attorney in
the State of Florida and Georgia. He graduated from the University
of Rochester with a Bachelors Degree in Economics and has been
awarded a dual-degree J.D./M.B.A. from Case Western Reserve
University School of Law and Weatherhead School of Management.
Mr. Atkinson is the nephew of Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip and son
of Ms. Lau Chu Lan, Carol.

Mr. Peter Horak, aged 71, was appointed Chief Executive Officer
of Cosmo in January 2001.
and has been its CEO since 1988. Mr. Horak has extensive knowledge

He is the co-founder of Cosmo Canada

and experience in distribution of consumer electronics products in
Canada. Prior to joining Cosmo Canada in 1982, Mr. Horak worked
with several top electronic companies and served as Sanyo’s Vice
President of Sales and Marketing. He leads the sales team to open
new markets and develop new products and works closely with the
administrative group and warehouse supporting group.

Mr. Jeff Horak, aged 51,
Cosmo Communications Canada Inc. as Vice President of Sales
& Marketing since 1981. He is responsible for sales,
development of foreign markets and develops various product lines,
which Cosmo distribute.

joined one of the Group US subsidiary

business
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SREAES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance. The Board of directors of the Company
(“the Board”) firmly believes that to maintain a good, solid
and sensible framework of corporate governance will ensure
the Company to run its business in the best interests of its

shareholders as a whole.

The Company adopted all the code provisions in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices ( “the Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ( “the Listing Rules™)

as its own code on corporate governance practices.

During the year ended 31 March 2010, the Company has
complied with the Code except the following:

1. Pursuant to code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer of an issuer should be
separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly
Philip Lau Sak

Hong is currently the chairman and managing director

established and set out in writing. Mr.

of the Company. Having considered the current business
operation and the size of the Group, the Board is of
the view that Mr. Lau acting as both the chairman and
managing director of the Company is acceptable and in
the best interest of the Company. The Board will review
this situation periodically.
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2. The Company was incorporated in Bermuda and enacted

by private act, the Starlight International Holdings
1989 of Bermuda (the “1989
Act”). Pursuant to section 3(e) of the 1989 Act, director

holding office as executive chairman or managing director

Limited Company Act,

shall not be subject to retirement by rotation at each
annual general meeting as provided in the bye-laws of
the Company ( “the Bye-laws" ). As the Company is bound
by the provisions of the 1989 Act, the Bye-laws cannot
be amended to fully reflect the requirements of the
code provision A.4.2 which stipulates that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years.

To enhance good corporate governance practices, Mr. Philip Lau
Sak Hong, the chairman and managing director of the Company
will voluntarily retire from his directorship at annual general
meeting of the Company at least once every three years in order
for the Company to comply with the Code, provided that, being
eligible for re-election, he may offer himself for re-election at

the annual general meeting.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with leading the Group in a responsible and
effective manner. Each director has to carry out his/her duties in
utmost good faith above and beyond any prevailing applicable laws
and regulations and act in the best interests of the shareholders.
The duties of the Board include establishing the strategic direction
of the Group, setting objectives and monitoring the performance
of the Group.

The Board has established schedule of matters specifically reserved to
the Board for its decision and those reserved for the management.
The Board reviews this schedule on a periodic basis to ensure that
it remains appropriate to the needs of the Company.
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The Board of the Company consists of three executive directors,
three independent non-executive directors and one non-executive
director. Their brief biographical details and relationship, if any,

are described on page 7 of the Annual Report.

The independent non-executive directors, all of whom are independent
of the management of the Company, are highly experienced
professionals coming from a diversified background. They ensure
that the Board maintains high standards of financial and other
mandatory reporting as well as providing adequate check and
balance of safeguard the interest of shareholders and the Company

as a whole.

Each of the independent non-executive directors and non-executive
director has entered into an appointment letter with the Company
pursuant to which each of them is appointed for service with
the Company from 1 October 2009 to 30 September 2011. The
appointment shall terminate on the earlier of (i) 30 September
2011, or (ii) the date on which the director ceases to be director
for any reasons pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company or any
other applicable laws.

The full Board meets no less than four times a year to review the
financial and operating performance of the Group. Additional board
meetings were held when necessary. Due notice and board papers
were given to all directors prior to the meeting in accordance
with the Listing Rules and the Code. The Board has established
procedure to enable directors, upon reasonable request, to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company’s expenses.
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There were four (4) regular Board meetings held in the financial
year ended 31 March 2010. The attendance record of each director
is shown below. All business transacted at the above meetings are
well-documented and maintained in accordance with applicable
laws and regulations.

REE2010F3A3MB L FE - BRITMHA4)
REFRlE BERESZEFLHE2IET - £
MEREEZMBEBHRBEREMNREKER
e AT AR o

No. of board

meeting attended

Name of director EEHA HEZESERAERH
Philip Lau Sak Hong 2185 E 4
Anthony Lau Sak Kai 21855 4
Andy Lau Sak Yuk 21858 4
Peter Hon Sheung Tin A H 4
Norman Ho Hau Chong ] E 4% 2
Chan Chak Chung = 4
Winston Calptor Chuck BB 3

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules (“the Model Code"”), as the code of conduct regarding
director’s securities transactions.

The Company has made specific enquiry of all directors that they
have complied with the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 March 2010.

In addition, the Board also established written guidelines on no
less exacting terms than the Model Code for senior management
of the Company in respect of their dealings in the securities of
the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

To strengthen the functions of the Board and to enhance its expertise,
there are two Board committees namely, the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee formed under the Board, with each
performing different functions.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee, which is chaired by Mr. Norman Ho Hau
Chong, has been established with defined terms of reference in
alignment with the recommendations set out in “A Guide for
Effective Audit Committees” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code of the Listing Rules. Other members

are Mr. Peter Hon Sheung Tin and Mr. Chan Chak Chung.

The Audit Committee meets no less than twice a year with the senior
management and the external auditors. The role and function of
the Audit Committee include: to review the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and other financial reporting
matters, to assure the completeness, accuracy and fairness of
the financial statement of the Group, discuss the effectiveness of
the systems of internal control throughout the Group and most
importantly, and to review all significant business affairs managed
by the executive directors in particular on connected transactions.
The Committee also provides advice and recommendations to the
Board and oversees all matters relating to the external auditors,
and it plays an important role in monitoring and safeguarding the
independence of external auditors.

The Audit Committee met three (3) times during the financial year
ended 31 March 2010. Work undertaken by the audit committee
included:

- reviewing of the financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2009 and for the six months ended 30 September
2009; and

- reviewing of the auditors’ fees and its re-appointment.
The attendance record of each member is shown below. All business

transacted at the above meetings are well-documented and maintained
in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.
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No. of audit
committee
meeting attended

Name of audit committee member BREESEEHS EEBEREZEEEEEAH
Norman Ho Hau Chong (mp=ki 1
Peter Hon Sheung Tin FEiEH

Chan Chak Chung BeR )2 frh

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMEES

The Company which is chaired by Mr. Peter Hon Sheung Tin, has ARAEKZFMNEE S AEMEBEEEEETE

been established with defined terms of reference. Other members
are Mr. Chan Chak Chung and Mr. Winston Calptor Chuck.

The Company aims to design remuneration policies that attract
and retain executive needed to run the Group successfully and to
motivate executives to pursue appropriate growth strategies whilst
taking into account performance of the individual. The remuneration
should reflect performance, complexity and responsibility of the
individual; and the remuneration package will be structured to
include salary, bonus and share options scheme to provide incentives
to directors and senior management to improve their individual

performances.

The role and function of the Remuneration Committee include
formulation of the remuneration policy, review and recommending
to the Board the annual remuneration policy, and determination
of the remuneration of the executive directors.

Work undertaken by the Remuneration Committee during the year
included:

- reviewing of the remuneration policy for 2009/2010; and

- reviewing of the remuneration of the executive directors
and the independent non-executive directors.

The Remuneration Committee meets once during the financial year
ended 31 March 2010 with the presence of Mr. Peter Hon Sheung
Tin and Mr. Chan Chak Chung.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Board of Directors has not established a nomination committee.
According to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Board has the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board. In assessing nomination of new directors, the Board
will take into consideration of the nominee’s qualification, ability
and potential contributions to the Company. There was no change
of the composition of the Board during financial year ended 31
March 2010.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of services provided by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu for the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 are
analysed as follows:

Hih &R

EERWENUREEZES - REBARFRZZAF
MA - EERARTRHREREEEMATIEE
= DVAHBRRTEREKAERRINIEAKE - KT
RHEFREN EERKEREREATERE -
BN RMADNFMEE ZBEER - BE201053 A
BTEIEREE  EERKBLEEH -

E A&
EE e FER A SFTAMITHNEZ2010F3A3181E
FERAEERERBSMSEMESTOT

31 March 2010

HK$'000

201053 A31H

BT

Audit service ZH PR 7% 2,500
Non audit service JEZ BUR TS 600

In respect of non-audit services, the fees paid to the Company’s
auditors related to tax consulting services.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’
RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARING THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management provides the explanation and information to the
Board to facilitate an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group. Meanwhile, the Directors are responsible
for ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected and
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applied consistently; and that judgments and estimates made are
prudent and reasonable. In preparing the financial statements for
the year ended 31 March, 2010, the accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong have been adopted and the requirements of
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the applicable

laws were complied with.

The Board was not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the
Group'’s ability to continue as going concern. The Board has prepared
the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The reporting responsibilities of external auditors of the Company
are disclosed in “Independent Auditor’s Report”.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining a sound and
effective internal control system of the Group. The system includes
a defined management structure with limits of authority, safeguard
its assets against unauthorized use of disposition, ensures the
maintenance of proper accounting records for the provision of
reliable financial information for internal use or for publication,
and ensures compliances with relevant laws and regulations. The
system is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss, and to manage the risks of
failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the achievement
of the Group’s objectives.

During the year, the Company has conducted review the effectiveness
of system of internal control including risk management system and
also the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function. The
report and findings has been submitted to the Board and follow-up
plan has been adopted based on recommendations. The Board also
reviewed adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget.
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SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATION

The objective of shareholder communication is to provide our
shareholders with detailed information about the Company so
that they can exercise their rights as shareholders in an informed
manner.

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its
shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives.
These include annual general meeting, annual report, various notices,
announcements and circulars. Procedure for voting by poll has been
read out by the chairman at the general meeting.

At the 2009 annual general meeting, separate resolution was
proposed by the Chairman in respect of each separate issue, including
re-election of directors and was voted by way of poll. The Chairman
of the Board of Directors and members of Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee attended the 2009 annual general meeting
to answer questions from shareholders.

CONCLUSION

The Company strongly believes that the quality and standard of
corporate governance reflects the quality of the management and
the operations of the Group's business. Good corporate governance
can safeguard the proper use of funds and effective allocation of
resources and to protect shareholders’ interests. The management
wholeheartedly advocated of the good practice in corporate
governance and will try our best to maintain, strengthen and improve
the standard and quality of the Group’s corporate governance.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in the design, manufacture and sale of a
wide range of electronic products and securities trading.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on page 37.

The directors do not recommend payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 March 2010.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements during the year in the investment
properties of the Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

In addition to accumulated profits, under The Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, contributed surplus is also available for distribution.
However, a company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium account.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution at 31 March 2010 consisted of contributed surplus of
HK$75,263,000 net of accumulated losses of HK$19,454,000.

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:

Lau Sak Hong, Philip

Lau Sak Kai, Anthony

Lau Sak Yuk, Andy

Lau Chu Lan, Carol (appointed on 23 July 2010)

Non-executive director:
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter

Independent non-executive directors:
Ho Hau Chong, Norman

Chan Chak Chung

Chuck Winston Calptor
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In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law 77, Ms. Carol Lau
Chu Lan, being newly appointed director, shall retire and being
eligible, offer herself for re-election at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-law 77, Ms. Carol Lau
Chu Lan, being newly appointed director, shall retire and being
eligible, offer herself for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

In accordance with the Company's Bye-law 82, Messrs. Lau Sak
Yuk, Andy, Hon Sheung Tin, Peter and Ho Hau Chong, Norman
will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

Independent non-executive directors have been appointed for a term
of two years until 30 September 2011 and are subject to retirement
by rotation as required by the Company’s Bye-laws.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip, a substantial shareholder
of the Company, has provided a personal guarantee to indemnify the
Group for any impairment of an unlisted available-for-sale investment
to the extent of HK$15 million (2009: HK$15 million).

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2010, the interests and short positions of the directors
or chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO")) which are required (a) to be notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to Section 352

EECRSER

BZE2010F3A31 0 - (R EBEF LSRN F
HREIEGG ) EXVEETRSD B2 R EENE
RATRBEBHBERSMARAR([HRA]) (B2
EREZFAFALRPEKRAZEE  MFERER
REBRZIAR)  RO)BRBEEFRAEGRDIE
352 ZB R0 BRI A A RIR IR A% R Bl T 2% 2 Z 5
FORBBRAMES WA EWHABDZ £
MARERETELZFHERETR(ZRESFAI)
BSITBAMRNAC R - ARBEESKEET

BAEBRARRIMBERR(TEREEAF LS
BIEEXVER) 2 1y « BRI RESHD 2 Ro%
BT

of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as

follows:

Approximate

Long position/ Number of percentage of
Name of directors short position Capacity shares held shareholding
EspA RB %R& g4 BREE BRENE DL
Executive directors:
HITES
Lau Sak Hong, Philip Long position Beneficial owner 99,823,029 12.71%
21185 5k o) BB A
Interest of controlled 3,165,277 0.40%
corporation (note a)
ERRNEIRE 2w
(Mtzxa)
Interest of controlled 10,100,415 1.29%
corporation (note b)
ERNTHER 2R
(PFF&EDb)
Held by trust (note ¢) 169,069,209 21.54%
EREESRHA (Mo
282,157,930 35.94%
—E-ZEFR AREBERAIR 23
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERWES

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES EBEoESER(E)
(CONT’D)
Approximate
Long position/ Number of percentage of
Name of directors short position Capacity shares held shareholding
BEEnE R /#E g4 BREE BEREANE DL

Executive directors: — continued

HITES -&

Lau Sak Kai, Anthony Long position Beneficial owner 38,693,836 4.93%
21855 A EmEAA
Interest of controlled 3,165,277 0.40%

corporation (note a)
ERAFIHER 2w
(Pffzxa)

Interest of controlled 10,100,415 1.29%
corporation (note b)
AR 2 =
(MtzEDb)

51,959,528 6.62%

Lau Sak Yuk, Andy Long position Beneficial owner 37,507,445 4.78%
21858 ) BB A

Interest of controlled 3,165,277 0.40%
corporation (note a)
ERAREE 2=
GED)

Interest of controlled 10,100,415 1.29%
corporation (note b)
TRATVHE 2w
(FF&ED)

50,773,137 6.47%
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERWES

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES BEECESRER(E)
(CONT'D)
Approximate
Long position/ Number of percentage of
Name of directors short position Capacity shares held shareholding
BEnE RB/%R& 28 BREE BRENE DL
Non-executive director:
FHITESE
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter Long position Beneficial owner 206,769 0.03%
EHEH R EnlEBA
Independent non-executive director:
BIUFHTES !
Chuck Winston Calptor Long position Beneficial owner 770,000 0.10%
E5E R BEnEA A
Notes: B 5T -
(a) These shares are held by K.K. Nominees Limited, a company which  (a) ZEROERBZGE - 2HEREGR
is wholly and beneficially owned by Lau Sak Hong, Philip, Lau (EREMIXEKEEBIIKEREK])E2E
Sak Kai, Anthony and Lau Sak Yuk, Andy (hereinafter collectively BB E 2 A 8K.K. Nominees Limited#F

af

with other family members referred to as the “Lau’s family”).
(b) These shares are held by Wincard Management Services Limited,  (b) ZEBRODERARAIRRIKEEERE
a company which is wholly and beneficially owned by the Lau’s A2 /A®EWincard Management Services

family. Limited#§ A °

(0) These shares are wholly and beneficially owned by Philip Lau  (c) ZERMBA—2RETESEERE2AA

Holding Corporation, a company beneficially owned by a Philip Lau Holding CorporationZ2& &=
discretionary trust, the discretionary objects of which include BE ZEEEAESZITABRERGE
Lau Sak Hong, Philip and his associates. NEBEAL -

/\ —E-TEFH ABEEERASD 25/



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERWES

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(CONT'D)

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares
in subsidiaries held by directors in trust for the Company or its
subsidiaries, as at 31 March 2010, none of the directors or chief
executive of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded
in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTIONS

Share options of the Company

The Company had a share option scheme which was approved and
adopted at the special general meeting of the Company held on 12
September 2002 (the "Old Scheme”) for a period of 5 years. The
primary purpose was to provide incentives or rewards to participants
for their contribution to the Group. Eligible participants of the
Old Scheme included any employees, non-executive directors,
suppliers of goods or services, customers, advisors or consultants
and shareholders of any member of the Group.

The maximum number of share options which might be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Old Scheme must
not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the shares in issue while overall
limit for all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the option granted to each participant (except substantial
shareholder, independent non-executive director, or their respective
associates) in any 12 months period up to the date of the grant
should not exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

The period within which the shares should be taken up under an
option was any period as determined by the Board, which should
not be more than 5 years from the date on which the option was
granted. The option might be exercised by the grantee at any time
during the option period.

EEvRSER(E)

BREXFEEERELEEEURARSEWER A
TREABHEEWNB AR ZE TREBARGI - K
201063 A3 1AM AR BEMESHEZITHRAER
RAARRABMBELAR(ERLESFRBERIIEXV
)zt - HEAROKESFFEERBEELSRS
EIGEBIEXVERT &85 #B 3R E A MG AN 1N 7] B 22
BT SRERESR AR RIRIBEEF RS KHI5352
BAETFE 2B LMRBEEETFRZEMNE AR A
KB AT 2 W s o

BB
ST T

RRAFR2002F9A12BRIT 2 RAFRIAE Ll
BERARBRE  BREEI([EREL - 22H
MIEREE R RE 2 EEHARNEEBIEL 2 &R/ o 7]
SHZEFIALBIEET  FRTES FRK
fRAGHEIER  BE - AR ARBERAREEATR
B oo

REBEASMBRL 2BREETEMAERTZR
BERMHER  TREBEETRMNZ10% - MEE
ERERATERRERND BB NMERB TR %
T Z230% °

REREREZAN12EARN  F2EE(ZER
R BUFRTEERREZSBZBBALRIN
TTEBREMBETRE TRET RN BB T A ER
ERDBEITRAZ1% -

BREATEHRBESRRE - EATRELEAR
REEAHERB RS o AR AT R B R A E (A
TTERBAHE
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERWES

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT'D)
Share options of the Company (CONT'D)

The subscription price of the share options was determined by the
Board, but would be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares on the offer date; (ii) the average of the closing price
of the shares of the 5 trading days immediately preceding the offer
date; or (iii) the nominal value of the shares on the offer date.

The consideration for the grant was HK$1 and it would in no
circumstance be refundable.

The Old Scheme expired on 11 September 2007 and thereafter,
no more option could be granted pursuant to the Old Scheme.
In respect of the options already granted under the Old Scheme,
the provisions shall remain in force. The movements of the share
options granted to certain employees of the Group pursuant to
the Old Scheme were as follows:

BREE

ERBZBREE)

BREZABEHEZTRRE  HEEHEERTHFE
BORETEEEER Ry 2WHE - (DERHA
HAEERER S AR FHRHE - i)k
RELBHMzEEARSEFE -

BHBREY R ER BT REEEAAERT
B RATRE o

B2 20079811 BER - B - BTAR
BESERLERE - iBBREFICSELZER
EME - BREENABR - BREEHEEET
REBETREZEREZZHEREAT

Number of share options

BB A
Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
Exercise as at during as at
Date of grant price 1.4.2009 the year 31.3.2010
R2009F 20105
4811 3A31H
REBH TREE HARTE AFEREN fef R AT B2
HK$
BT
2.11.2004 0.814 500,000 (500,000) -
5.1.2006 0.89 12,000,000 - 12,000,000
13.11.2006 1.45 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
4.1.2007 1.66 220,000 - 220,000
1.2.2007 1.72 40,000 - 40,000
7.3.2007 1.93 3,000,000 - 3,000,000
17,760,000 (500,000) 17,260,000

No share options were granted to the directors of the Company
pursuant to the Old Scheme.

Y ,///////////A\\\\‘ /////\\\\\\\\\\
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERWES

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT'D)
Share options of the Company (CONT'D)

Notes:

(@) The above options were granted for an exercise period of five
years from the date of grant of the options.

(b) No option was granted, exercised or cancelled during the year.

A new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was approved
and adopted at the special general meeting of the Company held
on 15 January 2008 for a period of 10 years. The primary purpose
is to recognise the contribution of participants and to recruit and
retain high calibre employees and attract human resources that
are valuable to the Group. Eligible participants of the New Scheme
included any full time employees (including directors, whether
executive or non-executive and whether independent or not),

suppliers, consultants, agents and advisors of the Group.

The maximum number of share options which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the New Scheme must
not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the adoption
date of the New Scheme on 15 January 2008 while overall limit for
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised must not
exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the option granted to each participant in any 12 months period
up to the date of the grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in
issue unless certain conditions are fulfilled.

The period within which the shares must be taken up under an
option is any period as determined by the Board, which shall
not be more than 10 years from the date on which the option is
granted. The option may be exercised by the grantee at any time
during the option period.

The subscription price of the share options is determined by the
Board, but will be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the shares on the offer date; (ii) the average of the closing price
of shares on the 5 trading days immediately preceding the offer
date; or (iii) the nominal value of the shares on the offer date.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERWES

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’'D) BRE(E)
Share options of the Company (CONT'D) RKATZEBREE)

The consideration for the grantis HK$1 and it will in no circumstance  EHEREZREA BT Z2ELTHBRT
be refundable. YR RIS o

The movements of the share options granted to certain employees REFH 2O HETFTAEEE TEE 2 HBIRESHIS

of the Group pursuant to the New Scheme were as follows: WK

Number of
share options
Exercise outstanding as at
Date of grant price 1.4.2009 and 31.3.2010
H2009F481H
K 201038318 HKRITHE
w®HBH TREE ZBEBREHE

HK$

BT
23.1.2008 1.042 150,000
28.1.2008 0.96 346,000
15.10.2008 0.40 500,000

996,000

No share options were granted to the directors of the Company AFEERNWEREFFEMAR A EERHER

pursuant to the New Scheme during the year. FE o
Notes: PaE

(a) The above options were granted for an exercise period of ten  (a) A FEREREHERTFRITE -
years from the date of grant of the options.

(b)  No option was granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled during the (b))  ANFE MBI L « 1715 - ol
year. TESH -

Share options of The Singing Machine Company, Inc. (“SMC”), ZAAF#EHE52.21%EH Z2HE 2 FThe Singing
a 52.21% owned subsidiary of the Company Machine Company, Inc.([SMCJ) Z i§ Bz #&

Particulars of the share option scheme of SMC (the “SMC Scheme”) SMCHERR#EET2I([SMCEHEl ) 2 15 H NG & 81
are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements. BREM 32 ©

///////\\\\\\ SE-TEFHR AMERERAD zi/////



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

EERBES

SHARE OPTIONS (CONT’'D)
Share options of The Singing Machine Company, Inc. ("SMC”), AKX TFEE52.21%ER2KHE 2T The Singing

a 52.21% owned subsidiary of the Company (CONT'D)

BRRE(E)

Machine Company, Inc.([SMCJ) 2 BER#E (&)

The movements of the share options granted to certain employees RIESMCEHEIERFAEEETRERE ZEREZE

of the Group pursuant to the SMC Scheme were as follows:

BEINWT

Number of share options

BREZE
Outstanding Granted Forfeited  Outstanding
Exercise as at during during as at
Date of grant price 1.4.2009 the year the year 31.3.2010
20095 R20105
4A18 3A31H
R HH TEE i8] RAT FRERE FRER K el RATHE
uss$
eV

5 September 2000 20009 A5H 2.04 5,550 - (5,550) -
31 December 2002 2002 12A31H 9.00 19,000 - (13,500) 5,500
19 December 2003 2003F12A19H 1.97 13,680 - (7,970) 5,710
6 February 2004 2004F2H6H 1.54 6,500 - - 6,500
26 February 2004 200452 H26H 1.36 20,000 - - 20,000
29 March 2004 2004%3A29H 1.20 20,000 = - 20,000
29 November 2004 2004411 H29H 0.75 40,000 - - 40,000
1 December 2004 2004%12R1H 0.77 20,000 - - 20,000
9 May 2005 2005 5H9H 0.60 112,000 = (55,000) 57,000
6 June 2005 20056 H6H 0.76 30,000 - (30,000) -
31 March 2006 2006%3A31H 0.32 60,000 - - 60,000
10 April 2006 20064/ 10H 0.33 186,485 . (134,485) 52,000
31 March 2007 200743H31H 0.93 60,000 - - 60,000
31 March 2008 2008%3A31H 0.45 120,000 - - 120,000
3 October 2008 2008F10A3H 0.14 300,000 - (300,000) -
31 March 2009 20093H31H 0.11 120,000 - - 120,000
31 March 2010 201063A31H 0.03 - 60,000 - 60,000
1,133,215 60,000 (546,505) 646,710

30 Starlight International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERWES

ARRANGEMENT TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than share option as disclosed above, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2010, the following persons, other than the interest
disclosed above in respect of the directors, had interest in 5% or
more in the shares and underlying shares of the Company have been
notified to the Company and recorded in the register of substantial
shareholders’ interests in shares and short positions required to be
kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO:

BEROIEZ2RZH

RAFEARELBEMRZY  ERARERLE
tRB AR R EMEREABEZ RO RESH
BN -

B EXIE BRI ARRHETAMB AR
=5

FERR

M20105F3A31H M TAT (R EMFEEERE
FERFZREINFERRRRG RABERODE D
ZHSAEZRGES  YEMEEAQRRITHER
RRBNEFEF R EEERBIEXVESE 336164 E &
BEZEFERERTARELMA -

Number of

ordinary shares in % of total

Name Capacity which interested issued shares

HEBITRAEHK

®E B BESBERMHE 2Bt

Lee Yu Chiang Beneficial owner 42,140,878 5.56%
THE E=BA A

Save as mentioned above and in the section headed “Directors’ [ it R[&E S &Lz IFTMES - R20106E3

Interests in Securities”, as at 31 March 2010, the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO recorded no
other interests or short positions in shares of the Company.

Y ////////\\\ ///\\\\\\\

A318 » ARAMREBCES KB RD)E3361KA
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERWES

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s
Bye-laws although there are no restrictions against such rights
under the laws in Bermuda.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer
and five largest customers accounted for 17.81% and 64.74%
respectively of the Group’s total turnover for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
and five largest suppliers accounted for 9.06% and 30.69%
respectively of the Group's total purchases for the year.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) has any interest in the Group's five largest
customers and suppliers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy regarding the employees of the Group is based
on their merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments of
the directors are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having
regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics. No director or any of his associates,
and executive is involved in dealing with his own remuneration.

The Company has adopted share option schemes as an incentive
to directors and eligible employees. Details of the schemes are set
out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EERWES

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received the annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive directors as required
under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered all
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company,
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float not less than 25% of Company’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules throughout the
year ended 31 March 2010.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations amounting to
HK$289,000.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period are set out in note 41
to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lau Sak Hong, Philip
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong
23 July 2010

FEZBIURIAE
AAREEESBIHNTEESRE LTRUZ
3EMBL 2 FEBIERE - KAAARBBHE
BUNRITEFHABIAL -

TRELARERE

RIBEARRFEESZ ARERMBEEERMNE - K
ANRREZE2010F3A3 1R EFER—BEH#EF L™
BARERLDR ARG EEITRD25% Z TR AR

FRLR -

B
REER - AEEHIFHK289,000% T -

BEHMEREE
BEDMEFE FERNGAMBREN 1 -

2E) e ERT AT RA R A ZEED
ZHRBEBNRAB AR BRBFAG LIRE -
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E
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZEEMREE

Deloitte.
X9

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
STARLIGHT INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Starlight
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 37
to 146, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 March 2010, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZEEREE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of The
Companies Act of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Y ////////\\\ ///\\\\\\\

BBE R E

RITHEERBREATHNEZHGRAMBREE
HER  TREBABRE(RFDE)FEIOKRERELE
PR E o BRULIASN - RITEVRE E A EE AL A
B o AIMTERAMESENAT - HEMEMA
TABSAREREMT - ATEREFTEGEA
SROGNBEENENETER - BEERERAK
TTETEERE  WRERBITER - UAEEE
HERAMBRESD N FAEFAERERRML -

ERTRATEFNERBBGSMBRERSD
ML EEMNEZER - MEEMNREFBIUANEZ
ZEDER HE - R EARRGEERM GRS
MBHEFAERERBANRAR - EFEZER
B ZBEZEERZARREREAE RN TS
HiRa M B mERMAORIIES - ARFTEENE
TR EXFARBRARNAMEZENBEERE
R BERNEEFEESMRANSIRENEE
MRAEHA S ESNAEN - URFERA ]
BRENBEII®RSA -

RITHEGE  RNIPMESHEZEESTREMEE b
RATNEZE RIRHER -

“E-ZEFR AHNEBRAERIF 35

/

/



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B ZEEMREE

OPINION =R

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true AT R A GAUBKREHEEMAFMRE &
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March A & 8 & £ B R2010F3A8318 89 8 B ik R
2010 and of the Group’'s loss and cash flows for the year then & SE£BE#HZZBITFEMNBERRESLREE @ I
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 2 1ZBRE 8 B 15 3R & Bl & BB (R B1EH YR &
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure  ERZEZRR -

il

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu mE) e BAEMR T EETRIIT
Certified Public Accountants HEDA

Hong Kong B

23 July 2010 201057 H23H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AEEHEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2010
B ZE2010F3A31HIEFE

2010 2009
Notes HK$'00_0 HK$'\0070
B 5 FHET FHET
Turnover 3 5 738,262 1,281,062
Cost of sales SHE R (610,322) (1,024,197)
Gross profit = A 127,940 256,865
Other income H U A 6 16,796 30,357
Distribution costs 7 S (124,860) (186,529)
Administrative expenses TBREHR (130,493) (167,473)
Increase (decrease) in fair value of REMEZ AFEE
investment properties EMORA) 13 37,134 (16,736)
Increase in fair value of derivative TSR TE
financial instruments ZRHEEEM 2,451 1,667
Increase (decrease) in fair value of EERBRAFEMETA
financial assets designated at fair BEZeMEE
value through profit or loss ZRFEEEMORD) 71 (1,591)
Increase (decrease) in fair value of FHIEEE 2R E \
investments held for trading ZRFEEEMORD) 5,476 (12,868)
Loss on deemed partial disposal of AR 7% E B A R EB
a subsidiary a2 BE 35 (7) (150)
Finance costs A& A 7 (10,692) (22,528)
Share of profits of associates FE G Bk = R A& A 472 578
Loss before taxation BrEi AR 1R 8 (75,712) (118,408)
Taxation IR 10 (1,468) (1,280)
Loss for the year AFEEE (77,180) (119,688)
Other comprehensive income (expense) E & @4z (FIx)
Exchange difference arising on REBINEBESE
translation of foreign operations 2 B, =R 5,422 (5,744)
Revaluation of leasehold BREEREMEREMGE
properties for own use upon BRZHEEME
transfer to investment properties 10,628 -
Deferred taxation in respect B L
of revaluation of the above ZIEFER A
properties (590) -
Other comprehensive income (expense) Z4F[ZH A& m Uz (FIst)
for the year 15,460 (5,744)
Total comprehensive expense AREEE2HMAS AR
for the year (61,720) (125,432)
Loss for the year Attributable to: REEZEETIIALEN
Owners of the Company RAEEE A (67,490) (110,186)
Minority interests DERE RS (9,690) (9,502)
(77,180) (119,688)
Total comprehensive expense REEZ2EMAS B
for the year Attributable to: TEALIE
Owners of the Company ’D\ETT?'EHA (52,366) (115,438)
Minority interests DR RS (9.354) (9,994)
(61,720) (125,432)
HK cents HK cents
AL AL
(restated)
(g =5)
Loss per share FAREE 12
— Basic and diluted —EAREES (7.35) (11.99)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE B ISIR H]R

At 31 March 2010
#20109F3A318

2010 2009
Notes HK$'00_0 HK$'\0070
Bt 5 FET FHET
Non-current assets FRMEEE
Investment properties SEME . 13 145,350 91,916
Property, plant and equipment M -~ B &kEE 14 237,652 272,565
Prepaid lease payments FE & HIE 15 3,774 63,676
Product development costs B E RN 16 - 260
Goodwill [k L 17 26,484 26,541
Interest in associates e B & N ] fE i 19 8,174 8,071
Available-for-sale investments AHEE 2R E 20 24,046 24,048
Deferred tax assets RIER TR E B 30 3,245 5,918
448,725 492,995
Current assets mENE EE
Inventories FE 22 325,718 402,471
Debtors, deposits and prepayments FEWERIE - R& KRBT FIA 23 115,247 181,451
Prepaid lease payments A E IR 15 121 1,386
Amounts due from associates & Y = 2 B BRIA 24 3,010 2,945
Taxation recoverable AUEIRIE 584 4,919
Investments held for trading FEEBEZIRE 25 13,877 6,955
Financial assets designated at fair HEEBBRAFEERA
value through profit or loss BRZemEE 21 3 798
Bank balances and cash RITEFRES 26 80,440 103,572
539,000 704,497
Current liabilities mEBE B \
Creditors and accrued charges ERERIBE R ERTE A 27 144,779 185,227
Amounts due to associates JE T BgE & X B AR IR 24 2,809 2,809
Derivative financial instruments TESRMTAE 21 275 50
Taxation payable e IR } 1,671 1,797
Borrowings — due within one year R—FRNEH 2 ER 28 219,389 302,309
Bank overdrafts RITEX 29 218 =
369,141 492,192
Net current assets e E E S E 169,859 212,305
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTEEAE 618,584 705,300
Non-current liabilities EnBEaR
Deferred tax liabilities LL%RIEEE 30 4,467 5,821
Borrowings — due after one year —FREBPZER 28 - 23,782
4,467 29,603
Net assets BERE 614,117 675,697
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R e MR Rk

At 31 March 2010

7201034318
2010 2009
Notes HK$000 HK$'000
P FERT FAT
Capital and reserves &7 K
Share capital N 31 314,035 314,035
Reserves f# 298,699 351,065
Equity attributable to owners RATHEB AEEER
of the Company N \ 612,734 665,100
Share option reserve of a listed subsidiary £ HIE A 7)< B IE R E 465 392
Minority interests DB R 918 10,205
Total equity B 614,117 675,697

The consolidated financial statements on pages 37 to 146 were $37EZF146BFE 2 GEEMBHE - £HR20105F
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 7 A23AHEE= P& REETIE - WH N 5ESE

July 2010 and are signed on its behalf by: REREE :
ZIHEE 2185H
Lau Sak Hong, Philip Lau Sak Kai, Anthony
CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
FEFREFLICTE BE

A SE-FEFH AMERERAT 39/



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
BEERBEE

For the year ended 31 March 2010

BZE2010F3A31HIEFE
Equity
Other attributable to Share option
Investment property Share Capital owners reserve
Share Share Merger Goodwill  revaluation revaluation  Translation option  redemption Accumulated of the  of alisted Minority
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  Company  subsidiary interests Total
RE EtE B e ARTREA LTHEARZ U2 |
s RiEE Eli1 HERE Efifife Effih AERE i RERE ESy] EitEE BRERE kxR ait
HK$"000 HK$ 000 HK$"000 HK$ 000 HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$ 000 HK$"000 HK$"000 HK$"000
TEn TEn TEn FiEn FiEn FiEn Tin T#n Tin TEn TEn TEn FiEn FiEn
At 1 April 2008 R200854A18 316,151 109,628 37,138 (3,688) (82) 2,007 9,579 3,553 53,852 253,601 781,739 253 17,784 799,776
Exchange difference BEENER
arising on translation EECERER
of foreign operations - - - - - - (5,252) - - - (5,252) - (492) (5,744)
Loss for the year RERER = - = - - - - - (110,186)  (110,186) - (9,502 (119,688)
Total comprehensive TERRERRHE
expense for the year - - - - - - (5.252) - - (110,186) (115,438) - (9,994) (125,432)
316,151 109,628 37,138 (3,688) (82) 2,007 4,327 3,553 53,852 143,415 666,301 253 7,190 674,344
Acquisition/deemed e /B IERENE
acquisition of additional  RFAESMER
interests in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - - (656) (656)
Capital contribution from ~ MEAFDERETE
minority shareholders of
a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - - 3,426 3,426
Deemed partial disposal  HiEAHEREAE
of a subsidiary Blrgs - - - - - - - - - - - - (355) (355)
Recognition of equity- DNEREERS
settled share-based EUPAIES
payments - - - - - - - 3 - - 3 139 - 142
Repurchase of shares BEKG (2,116) - - - - - - - 2,116 (1,204) (1,204) - - (1,204)
At 31 March 2009 2009534318 314,035 109,628 37,138 (3,688) (82) 2,007 4,327 3,556 55,968 142,211 665,100 392 10,205 675,697
Exchange difference BEENEREEL
arising on translation EfZ®
of foreign operations - - - - - - 5,086 - - - 5,086 - 336 5422
Revaluation of leasehold ~ BEERENERER
properties for own use fEERZRENE
upon transfer to
investment properties = = = = 10,628 = = = = 10,628 - - 10,628
Deferred taxation in respect ~ Eff Lii#1E 2
of revaluation of EiEHE
the above properties - - - - (590) - - - - (590) - - (590)
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - - - - - (67,490) 67,490) - (9,690) (77,180)
Total comprehensive income A5 E 2 El&
(expense) for the year (FR)es - - - - - 10,038 5,086 - - (67,490) (52,366) - (9,354) (61,720)
314,035 109,628 37,138 (3,688) (82) 12,045 9413 3,556 55,968 74,721 612,734 392 851 613,977
Capital contribution from ~ MELRDERRLE
minority shareholders of
a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - 17 17
Deemed partial disposal ~ HEALEMNE
of a subsidiary DSBS - - - - B - B - - - - - (50) (50)
Recognition of equity- AERREINRR
settled share-based SUPAGES
payments = = = = = = = = = = = 73 = 73
At 31 March 2010 ®201063A318 314,035 109,628 37,138 (3,688) (82) 12,045 9413 3,556 55,968 74,721 612,734 465 918 614,117
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEBRIMNER

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BEZ2010F3A31HIEFE

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&IT
Cash flows from operating activities BEEECZEER
Loss before taxation B Bl 518 (75,712) (118,408)
Adjustments for: FE
Share of profits of associates FE (R Bt = A B g (472) (578)
Amortisation of product development costs 72E n 35 R K AN 3 260 347
Release of prepaid lease payments BB HERIA 121 1,386
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Y BEREBITE 47,380 53,514
(Increase) decrease in fair value of BEMEZ NFEE
investment properties (3 n) k4 (37,134) 16,736
(Increase) decrease in fair value of investments RIEEEZREZ
held for trading ANEEEOCEM) D (5,476) 12,868
Increase in fair value of derivative PfTEEmMITAEZ
financial instruments N EEEM (2,451) (1,667)
(Increase) decrease in fair value of financial assets BER/RAFEBEGA
designated at fair value through profit or loss B eMEEZ
NFAEE (RN ) R A (71) 1,591
Impairment loss recognised in respect of ERERAAIHEERE Y
available-for-sale investments A EE 2 4
Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill EEREE ZREEE - 1,569
Dividend income from available-for-sale investments A E 2R E 2RSS (255) (356)
Dividend income from investments RIEEEZRE
held for trading 2 B B Es (161) (3)
Brokerage expense on redemption of shares BERD &L fe - 14
Share-based payments MRAGEE 2 R 15K 73 142
Interest expense FMEFAXZ 10,692 22,528
Interest income A E W as (162) (525)
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, LEME - BE LB
plant and equipment pd =100 168 (15,268)
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease payments & TR HH & 3RIB 2 i F (2,661) =
Allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventories PRE RBIE 217 ERAE 11,291 10,451
Allowance for doubtful debts RAREE 2,005 14,436
Impairment loss recognised H h fE R IB TSR
in respect of other receivables Z BB EE 7,767 -
Loss on deemed partial disposal of a subsidiary AR 7 S BB A Jl =B
a2 EE 7 150
Effect of foreign exchange rate change on =B A A1 2R BR [ 2= B E)
inter-company balances LR 134 (319)
Operating cash flows before movements EBREFBAI 2
in working capital EIBELIREM (44,655) (1,388)
Decrease in inventories GFERD 65,462 130,684
Decrease in debtors, deposits and prepayments FEUERTE - & MIEN FRIBR A 35,092 94,478
(Increase) decrease in investments held for trading BIEEE 2 %E (g m) R4 (1,446) 558
Decrease in derivative financial instruments PTESBMT AR 2,676 1,319
Decrease in financial assets designated at fair EBERBRAFEE; ABR
value through profit or loss ZEBMEERD 866 5,760
(Decrease) increase in creditors and accrued charges [EERIBREFTE A R4 )N (40,448) 9,015
—EZ-ZFEFH AREKRERAR 41
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
an\ }Eﬁl)lbié‘%

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZ2010F3A31HIEFE

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Cash generated from operations BEELEZHS 17,547 240,426
Dividend received from investments held for trading FEEEIRE 7K E M 161 3
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded (paid) BEMEHERD () 3,674 (10,509)
Taxation in other jurisdictions paid H M REEAIE S B (518) (2,627)
Taxation in other jurisdictions refunded Hith mEEm B IAR O 314 4,257
Net cash from operating activities KEEBMS 2B 58 21,178 231,550
Cash flows from investing activities KRERB RSN
Proceeds from disposal of prepaid lease payments o TR T & RIB TS SR IE 63,707 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE  BEREHE
and equipment Firi5 k18 21,873 1,000
Dividend received from an associate B URES A5 ) R 369 1,080
Dividend received from AIHEEZRE 2K E KR
available-for-sale investments 255 356
Interest received B W) 2 162 525
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEMXE  KERZE (18,840) (34,576)
(Increase) decrease in amounts due JE Wi B 2 X R AR 1B
from associates (3 n)m D (65) 1,049
Acquisition of additional interest of a subsidiary WS B Bff &8 1 7] BB 1M 7 - (1,600)
Advance to an associate BT HEE QA - (5)
Net cash from (used in) investing activities BEEBHE (FTH) 2
WEeFRE 67,461 (32,171)
Cash flows from financing activities %Eﬁ}éiﬂzfﬁ%m
Capital contribution from minority B AR V&R IFE
shareholders of a subsidiary 117 3,426
Net repayment of short term loans EHERENFRE (47,324) (15,468)
Net (payment of) proceeds from debt factoring loans — fEHEEIRE FH < (1)
PRSI H R (28,323) 16,349
Net repayment of trust receipts and import loans SEBERAOERKE B
and loans related to bills discounted with recourse BB RBEARRR 2 EXK
EFRE (19,946) (129,452)
Repayment of bank loan EEFITER (11,109) (10,388)
Interest on bank and other borrowings paid BT ERTT R E M B (10,692) (22,528)
Repurchase of shares including brokerage expense BRRG (BREELEHAS) - (1,218)
Net cash used in financing activities BB EEFTA 2R FE (117,277) (159,279)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and B NRIASEEEE Z208D)
cash equivalents #hnFE8 (28,638) 40,100
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year F#E&&kRESSFEEE 103,572 68,897
Effect of exchange difference EREREITE 5,288 (5,425)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRBe kA SEFEIEE 80,222 103,572
Represented by: Rk -
Bank balances and cash WITHEGFRRE 80,440 103,572
Bank overdrafts RITEX (218) =
80,222 103,572
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2010

HZE2010F3A31HIEFE
1. GENERAL

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars which is the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the design, manufacture and
sale of a wide range of electronic products and securities
trading.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised standards, amendments and interpretations (“new
and revised HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") which are or have
become effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of financial statements
HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)  Borrowing costs

HKAS 32 & 1 Puttable financial instruments and obligations
(Amendments) arising on liquidation

A\ e~ T

B

ARRARNBEREIMA L2 BEHREER
RE EBRDEREBMEXSMABERRAA
(TBEZZPFT]) E7F - AR R Z a2 Mt SRt
HREFEZEXMHBNANFRIAENAR

E?go

RAEMBREDRARBZNEEEETE
5l o

ARRRREERAR  HEXENBRRR
ERA HERHERERZZETEMNR
BHEE XK -

ERMERCET 2ERBME
EREA(TERBMBERESE

q1)

RAFE AEEEEMTIBESE

HAR(EBRHAAAR]  BEHRERE

BN RSB TRR - BE RRE

([ RISETE BB RE£R ) -

BAGH RS IR MBHRE 25

(2007 F&4EET)

BB ERE235 EERAR
(20075 8183T)

BERCHENENTR RBRELZIIEER
EALACHEN) TAREM
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

l‘/

& I IR E M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZE2010F3A31HIEFE

44

T~

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT'D)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC)* = INT 9 &
HKAS 39 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) = INT 13
HK(IFRIC) = INT 15
HK(IFRIC) - INT 16
HK(IFRIC) - INT 18

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Cost of an investment in a subsidiary,
jointly controlled entity or associate

Vesting conditions and cancellations
Improving disclosures about financial
instruments

Operating segments

Embedded derivatives

Customer loyalty programmes

Agreements for the construction of real estate

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation

Transfers of assets from customers

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2008,
except for the amendment to HKFRS 5
that is effective for annual periods beginning

on or after 1 July 2009

Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009
in relation to the amendment to
paragraph 80 of HKAS 39

* IFRIC respresents the International Financial Reporting

Interpretations Committee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VB RE N

For the year ended 31 March 2010
B ZE2010F3A31HIEFE

N

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT'D)

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and
revised HKFRSs has had no material effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the current or prior
accounting periods.

New and revised HKFRSs affecting presentation and

disclosure only

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial
Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced terminology changes
(including revised titles for the financial statements) and
changes in the format and content of the consolidated
financial statements.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that has resulted in a change
in the basis of measurement of segment result, segment
assets and segment liabilities.

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments

(Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures required
in relation to fair value measurements in respect of financial
instruments which are measured at fair value. The Group
has not provided comparative information for the expanded
disclosures in accordance with the transitional provision set
out in the amendments.

ERAMEREET 2EEMK
BEEAN(EEMBREE
(&)

B TRARESD - RN RIS E AT BB
TR RIS A R W A SR W A
M2EAMBREEREALE -

a

EXEEIRBBEANZHEBREBITESR
Bt 35 3R & 22 R

BB EEERF 1595 (2007 FAANEET ) B 3R
E>27%

BB ST ERE 15 (2007 F&KIERT) 5l Aflr
BEDH(BIELEIZHMBEREZE) iR
BB HRERARANBTEE -

BRI B ER FE8RFEE T
BREWHREEFR A —AKELER
KRBT HEEE  DRBEERDRAFEZE

HEBH2BITAZREEH

(BB BHEERE7 L@ TR - KF
Z1EET)

BEVBRERANETR ZETRAHREA
FEEAECSRIAEBATEEFS
ZHWBRE - REBEZFETAHEZ BRI
X AREYERBARBERERFELERE
e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.L'
%/T A H

B 55 R 5 B RE

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZE2010F3A31HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT'D)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments or interpretations that have
been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKAS 32 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1

(Amendment)

HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9
HK(IFRIC) = INT 14
(Amendment)
HK(IFRIC) = INT 17
HK(IFRIC) - INT 19

Starlight International Holdings Limited Annual Repor
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Amendments to HKFRS 5 as part of
Improvements to HKFRSs 2008!

Improvements to HKFRSs 20092

Improvements to HKFRSs 20103

Related party disclosures’

Consolidated and separate financial
statements’

Classification of rights issues®

Eligible hedged items'

Additional exemption for first-time
adopters®

Limited exemptions from comparative HKFRS
7 disclosure for first-time adopters*

Group cash-settled share-based payment
transactions*

Business combinations'

Financial instruments®

Prepayments of a minimum funding
requirement’

Distributions of non-cash assets to owners'

Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity
instruments®

FE P 3 18 I A8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VB RE N

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BEZ2010F3A31HIEFE

N

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT'D)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 20009.

2 Amendments that are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009 and 1 January
2010, as appropriate.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
July 2010 and 1 January 2011, as appropriate.

—

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2010.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
February 2010.

€ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2010.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2011.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2013.

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group’s
accounting treatment for business combination for which
the acquisition date is on or after 1 April 2010. HKAS 27
(Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for changes
in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary.

HKFRS 9 "Financial Instruments" introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets and
will be effective from 1 April 2013, with earlier application
permitted. The Standard requires all recognised financial
assets that are within the scope of HKAS 39 "Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement" to be measured
at either amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that (i) are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows and (ii) have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost. All other debt investments and
equity investments are measured at fair value. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, changes in fair value of equity investments
are generally recognised in other comprehensive income,
with only dividend income recognised in profit or loss. The
application of HKFRS 9 might affect the classification and
measurement of the Group's financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VRSN

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZE2010F3A31HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (CONT'D)

In addition, as part of "Improvements to HKFRSs" issued in
2009, HKAS 17 "Leases" has been amended in relation to
the classification of leasehold land. The amendments will be
effective from 1 April 2010, with earlier application permitted.
Before the amendments to HKAS 17, lessees were required
to classify leasehold land as operating leases and presented
as prepaid lease payments in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The amendments have removed such a
requirement. Instead, the amendments require the classification
of leasehold land to be based on the general principles set
out in HKAS 17, that are based on the extent to which risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of a leased asset lie with
the lessor or the lessee. The application of the amendments
to HKAS 17 might affect the classification and measurement
of the Group's leasehold land at revalued amount.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of the other new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VB RE N

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BEZ2010F3A31HIEFE

N

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain properties
and financial instruments, which are measured at revalued
amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses

are eliminated on consolidation.

Acquisition of additional interests of subsidiaries does not
fall within the definition of business combination under
HKFRS 3 “Business combinations” as the acquisition does
not result in a change in control. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the carrying amount of assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary attributable to the additional interest
acquired is recognised as goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VRSN

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZ2010F3A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Basis of consolidation (CONT'D)

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group's equity therein.
Minority interests in the net assets consist of the amount of
those interests at the date of the original business combination
and the minority's share of changes in equity since the date
of the combination. Losses applicable to the minority in
excess of the minority's interest in the subsidiary's equity are
allocated against the interests of the Group except to the
extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is able
to make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions
for recognition under HKFRS 3 are recognised at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset
and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost
of the business combination over the Group's interest in
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment,
the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds
the cost of the business combination, the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VB RE N

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BEZ2010F3A31HIEFE

N

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Business combinations (CONT'D)

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is
initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net
fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisition prior to 1 April 2001
continues to be held in reserves, and will be transferred to
the accumulated profits at the time when the business to
which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-
generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes
impaired.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising
from an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less
than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss
is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of
the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is
recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VRSN

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZ2010F3A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Goodwill (CONT’D)

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating
unit, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal.

Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’'s share of net assets of
the associate, less any identified impairment loss. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. An additional share of losses is
provided for and a liability is recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date
of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is
included within the carrying amount of the investment and
is assessed for impairment as part of the investment.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VB RE N

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BEZ2010F3A31HIEFE

N

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has been passed.

Commission income is recognised when services are
rendered.

Interest income from a financial asset excluding financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments excluding financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is recognised when the
Group’s right to receive payment has been established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost or revalued amounts less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VRSN

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZ2010F3A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Property, plant and equipment (CONT'D)

Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief provided by
paragraph 80A of HKAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment”
from the requirement to make regular revaluation of the
Group’s land and buildings which had been carried at revalued
amounts prior to 30 September 1995, and accordingly no
further revaluation of land and buildings is carried out. Prior
to 30 September 1995, the revaluation increase arising on
the revaluation of these assets was credited to the other
property revaluation reserve. Any future decreases in value
of these assets will be dealt with as an expense to the extent
that they exceed the balance, if any, on the other property
revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of
the same asset. On the subsequent sale or retirement of
a revalued asset, the corresponding revaluation surplus is
transferred to accumulated profits.

Construction in progress is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Cost includes all development expenditure
and other direct costs attributable to such project. Construction
in progress is not depreciated until completion of construction.
On completion of construction, the assets are transferred to
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment.

The cost or valuation of leasehold properties in Hong Kong
is depreciated over forty years on a straight line basis after
taking into account of the estimated residual value. The cost
of leasehold properties outside Hong Kong is amortised over
a period of fifty years or, where shorter, the remaining term
of the leases on a straight line basis.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress and leasehold properties over their estimated useful
lives using the reducing balance method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VB RE N

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BEZ2010F3A31HIEFE

N

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Property, plant and equipment (CONT'D)

The land and building elements of a lease of land and
buildings are considered separately for the purposes of
lease classification, unless the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements, in
which case, the entire lease is generally treated as a finance
lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, leasehold interests in land are accounted
for as operating leases except for those that are classified
and accounted for as investment properties under the fair
value model.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in
the period in which the item is derecognised.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at their fair values using the fair value model.
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VRSN

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZ2010F3A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Investment properties (CONT'D)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the item

is derecognised.

Transfer to investment property will be made only when there
is a change in use, evidenced by an end of owner-occupation
for a transfer from owner-occupied property to investment
property. For a transfer from owner-occupied property to
investment property that will be carried at fair value, the
difference at that date between the carrying amount of the
property and its fair value is credited to the other property

revaluation reserve.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VB RE N

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BEZ2010F3A31HIEFE

N

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Financial instruments (CONT’'D)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets classified as at
fair value through profit or loss, of which interest income
is included in net gains or losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VRSN

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZE2010F3A31HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TEEHHE (&)

(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT'D) SRIAE)

Financial assets (CONT'D) ERMEE(E)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BRAFEETAERZEHEE

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two BATEEFABRZEHEESWE 2
subcategories including financial assets held for trading EEEEE v e EE RNV EREETE
and those designated at fair value through profit or loss RAFEEBETABIRVIES -

on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if: UTE&mMEENDEAFFEESE :

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of . EXBRANEHARALEMEA
selling in the near future; or 5%

. it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial . EERNAEE —HEEN I ERY
instruments that the Group manages together and has BIABAEGH =) LARETH
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; SEHIER  ERER 5k
or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective . EAEMMETEBWIEREERBERLZ
as a hedging instrument. T A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VB RE N

For the year ended 31 March 2010
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Financial instruments (CONT’'D)

Financial assets (CONT'D)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(CONT'D)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would

otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that
basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement” permits
the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value arising
from remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend earned
on the financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZ2010F3A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Financial instruments (CONT’'D)

Financial assets (CONT'D)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including debtors, deposits, amounts due
from associates and bank balances and cash) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments. Available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in investment revaluation reserve,
until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in investment revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy on

impairment loss on financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, they are measured at
cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of the
reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment loss
on financial assets below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
BEZ2010F3A31HIEFE

N

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Financial instruments (CONT’'D)

Financial assets (CONT'D)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit
or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of
impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade debtors,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period
ranging from 30 days to 90 days and observable changes
in national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VRSN

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZ2010F3A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Financial instruments (CONT’'D)

Financial assets (CONT'D)
Impairment of financial assets (CONT'D)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade debtors, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss. When a trade debtor is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VB RE N

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BEZ2010F3A31HIEFE

N

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT’'D)

Financial assets (CONT'D)
Impairment of financial assets (CONT’'D)

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognised directly in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in investment revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities generally include
other financial liabilities and derivative financial instruments
that do not qualify for hedge accounting.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VRSN

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZE2010F3A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Financial instruments (CONT’'D)

Financial liabilities and equity (CONT'D)
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including creditors, amounts due to
associates, bank overdrafts and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly from equity. No gains
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
Consideration paid is recognised directly in equity.

Derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for
hedge accounting

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are initially
recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is
entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair
value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Starlight International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010

\A

FESHEEK(E)

SRMITE(E)

SRE MRS (E)
SBEMRE

SHEmOEENER BABEARE
B RTEXRER  EARBEBRRA
BB ERAHE -

KATA

BARRETZERATRZE KRAFFIEN
BREZBITRAALR -

BOARBART 2 RATAREET BEKE
REHMG - RBEIFHARAARE ZRA
TAF YT EERSEREMNHER -
NREEZRNERER

TRERRENETREEZITEESMTIA

TEERBREPEHEAREZITETAR
AVITAETRANZARAFEEN S E
R HEBERHERRRRZ A FEEEN
2 - FABEAENEREER -

//////\\\\\\\\\\\



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VB RE N

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BEZ2010F3A31HIEFE

N

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT'D)

Financial instruments (CONT’'D)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised directly in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and recognise a collateralised borrowing for

proceeds received.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when the
share options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding

increase in equity (share option reserve).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VRN

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZ2010F3A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Share-based payment transactions (CONT'D)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(CONT'D)

Share options granted to employees (CONT'D)

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the share
option reserve will be transferred to accumulated profits.

For share options granted to employees on or before 7
November 2002, or granted after 7 November 2002 and
vested before 1 April 2005, the financial impact of share
options granted is not recorded in the consolidated financial
statements until such time as the options are exercised, and
no charge is recognised in profit or loss in respect of the
value of options granted. Upon the exercise of the share
options, the resulting shares issued are recorded as additional
share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the
excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal value
of the shares is recorded as share premium. Options which
lapse or are cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted
from the register of outstanding options.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development (or from the development phase of an internal
project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following
have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;
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B ZE2010F3A31HIEFE

N

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Research and development expenditure (CONT'D)

° the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development expenditure is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

The resultant asset is amortised on a straight line basis over
its useful life on the same basis as intangible assets acquired
separately, and carried at cost less subsequent accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted-average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
less all further costs to completion and costs to be incurred
in selling and distribution.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZ2010F3A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Impairment (other than goodwill)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another standard, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase under that standard.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
BEZ2010F3A31HIEFE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Taxation (CONT'D)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor
the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZ2010F3A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Taxation (CONT'D)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred
tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax
is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity respectively.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into
an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental
expense over the lease term on a straight line basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VRSN

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BEZ2010F3A31HIEFE

N

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale for which the
commencement date for capitalisation is on or after 1 April
2009, are added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VRSN

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZE2010F3A31HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONT’D)

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefits scheme or
the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF") Scheme are charged
as expenses when employees have rendered services entitling
them to contributions.

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BEZ2010F3A31HIEFE

4. KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONT’'D)

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews the physical conditions
and saleability of inventories at the end of the reporting
period, and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for use
in production. The management estimates the net realisable
value for such finished goods and consumables based primarily
on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions.
As at 31 March 2010, the carrying amount of inventories is
HK$325,718,000 (2009: HK$402,471,000), net of allowance
for obsolete and slow-moving inventories of HK$40,498,000
(2009: HK$36,995,000).

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating units and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 March 2010,
the carrying amount of goodwill is HK$26,484,000 (2009:
HK$26,541,000). Details of the recoverable amount calculation
are disclosed in note 18.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VRSN

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZ2010F3A31HIEFE

KEY SOURCE OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONT’'D)

Income taxes

As at 31 March 2010, no deferred tax asset was recognised
in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position in
relation to the estimated unused tax losses of HK$250,894,000
(2009: HK$199,082,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The realisability of the deferred tax
asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the future.
In cases where the actual future taxable profits generated
are more or less than expected, a material recognition or
reversal of deferred tax asset may arise, which would be
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which such a
recognition or reversal takes place.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” with
effect from 1 April 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard
that requires operating segments to be identified on the
basis of internal reports about components of the Group
that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision
maker for the purpose of allocating resources to segments
and assessing their performance. In contrast, the predecessor
Standard (HKAS 14 “Segment Reporting”) required an entity
to identify two sets of segments (business and geographical)
using a risks and returns approach, with the entity’s system
of internal financial reporting to key management personnel
serving only as the starting point for the identification of
such segments. In the past, the Group’s primary reporting
format was business segments. The application of HKFRS 8
has not resulted in a redesignation of the Group’s reportable
operating segments as compared with the primary reportable
operating segments determined in accordance with HKAS
14, but resulted in change in the basis of measurement of
segment result, segment assets and segment liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2010
B ZE2010F3A31HIEFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’'D)

The Group is organised into two operating divisions,
namely design, manufacture and sale of electronic products
(representing consumer electronic audio and video equipment,
musical instruments and accessories) and securities trading.
These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports its

segment information.

Segment revenue and results

An analysis of the Group’s revenue, which represents sales of

goods, and results by reportable segments is as follows:

TEER(E
AEEEHEMED BAR - DHRBTE
REEBETHERE  EBREMH)R
B RERHEURESEE - RSB
AEERELD AR 2 HE -

P L ONSE S

BAKEARERS B2 WA(BIHEESR)
MEZAFWT -

Design,
manufacture
and sale of
electronic Securities
products trading Consolidated
EfEM
BE o BiE
RHE HEEE =5
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET FET
Year ended 31 March 2010 HZE2010F3B831HILEEE
TURNOVER B 738,262 = 738,262
SEGMENT RESULTS DEEE (103,193) 8,159 (95,034)
Interest income A€ 162
Unallocated income K5 B las 5,134
Unallocated expenses AAEHXZ (12,416)
Increase in fair value of investment BEMEL
properties NFEEE M 37,134
Finance costs B A (10,692)
Loss before taxation K& B & 1B (75,712)
Taxation 18 (1,468)
Loss for the year REFEE (77,180)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VRSN

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZE2010F3A31HIEFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 5. vk iﬁﬁﬂ(,,)
Segment revenues and results (CONT'D) DEBMA R B (E)
Design,
manufacture
and sale of
electronic Securities
products trading Consolidated
EfEM
RE s B
RHE BHFEE =51
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET FHET
Year ended 31 March 2009 HZ2009F3H318LFE
TURNOVER R 1,281,062 - 1,281,062
SEGMENT RESULTS DEEE (58,422) (12,789) (71,211)
Interest income B E 525
Unallocated income A 5,045
Unallocated expenses RAOBRAY (13,503)
Decrease in fair value of investment REMEZ
properties NEBERD (16,736)
Finance costs A AR (22,528)
Loss before taxation PR AT E B (118,408)
Taxation R (1,280)
Loss for the year REFERE (119,688)
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the AR R D S 2 et R B sE3 ATl 2 AN &=
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note EetBRER - 9MBEERS T2
3. Segment results represent the results from each segment B BHRAARDA ﬁ?ﬁ%??ﬁizqﬂ%ﬁﬂl
without allocation of central administration costs incurred AN~ B E 2 AN EEEMN D
by head office, increase/decrease in fair value of investment BlE At HE 2 ®RE 2R B W - %ﬂi
properties, interest income, dividend income from available- Wazs -~ BB A RELIE o b i FE BERER
for-sale investments, rental income, finance costs and RESHRUEESIEERMIGEREZTE
taxation. This is the measure reported to the chief operating 2k o

decision maker for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VB RE N

For the year ended 31 March 2010

B ZE2010F3A31HIEFE
5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’'D) 5. 2¥ERE)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERAR
An analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by reportable BRAEEBERY B ZEERBEDITW
segments is as follows: T
Design,
manufacture
and sale of
electronic Securities
products trading Consolidated
BfEm
skt~ Bl
REHE BHEEE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET
At 31 March 2010 M2010%3831H
ASSETS £E
Segment assets DEEE 712,392 18,658 731,050
Unallocated corporate assets APDBEAREE 256,675
Consolidated total assets SETHEE 987,725
LIABILITIES =
Segment liabilities HEHEE 144,779 275 145,054
Unallocated corporate liabilities AREARBE 228,554
Consolidated total liabilities AEtEaE 373,608
At 31 March 2009 200943 A31H
ASSETS £E
Segment assets DEEE 953,994 10,180 964,174
Unallocated corporate assets APBERAREE 233,318
Consolidated total assets SETHEE 1,197,492
LIABILITIES =
Segment liabilities HEHEE 184,556 619 185,175
Unallocated corporate liabilities AARARBE 336,620
Consolidated total liabilities AEtEaE 521,795
77
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A

I N =|

B %5 R B RE

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZE2010F3A31HILEFE

78

T~

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 5. DEER(E)
Segment assets and liabilities (CONT'D) THEERAG(E)
Unallocated corporate assets mainly represent investment APOERARBEEFTERKEYE  AHHHEE
properties, available-for-sale investments, deferred tax assets, 2B EEMEBEE  FEUEL QTR
amounts due from associates, taxation recoverable and bank IH - A EHREBERRETEELERES
balances and cash.
Unallocated corporate liabilities mainly represent borrowings, AOEAFBBTITEREES « ENEE AT
amounts due to associates, taxation payable and deferred BR1E - ENREREEHREAE -
tax liabilities.
Other segment information Hit &R
Design,
manufacture
and sale of
electronic Securities
products trading Consolidated
EFEM
sRat > B
REHE HHEE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Amounts included in the measurement MADBEERDBEE
of segment result or segment assets: FTEZFE ¢
Year ended 31 March 2010 BZE201063A31B8LFE
Additions of property, plant and equipment HEME - RE REE 18,840 - 18,840
Amortisation of product development costs 7 in B B AR AN 6 260 = 260
Increase in fair value of derivative financial TEeRTEZ ATEEEM
instruments - (2,451) (2,451)
Increase in fair value of financial assets EEREATEENAERZ
designated at fair value through profit or loss ~ &REE 2 A FEERE - (71) (71)
Increase in fair value of investments held for RIEEBEZREZATEELM
trading - (5,476) (5,476)
Release of prepaid lease payments B EEFRIERER 121 - 121
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - BE L& HEITE 47,380 - 47,380
Allowance for doubtful debts RERE AR 2,005 = 2,005
Allowance for obsolete and slow-moving RERFHE 2 TERE
inventories 11,291 - 11,291
Impairment loss recognised in respect H fth FEUGRIE FERR
of other receivables ZREBRE 7,767 - 7,767
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VRSN

For the year ended 31 March 2010
B ZE2010F3A31HIEFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’'D)

Other segment information (CONT'D)

5. 2FERE)
H

Ly BER(F)

Year ended 31 March 2009

HZE2009F3831HIEEE

Additions of property, plant and equipment ERYE  BERRE 34,576 =
Amortisation of product development costs RN T 347 -
Increase in fair value of derivative financial TESBIAEZ R FEEEM

instruments - (1,667)
Decrease in fair value of financial assets EERBEATEEGAERZ

designated at fair value through profit SREEZATERRD

or loss - 1,591
Decrease in fair value of investments held for #HEBEZREZ AFEERD

trading - 12,868
Release of prepaid lease payments EAEERIERD 1,386 =
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #1% - BE kR ETE 53,514 =
Allowance for doubtful debts RIREAE 14,436 =
Allowance for obsolete and RERFBHE 2 FERE

slow-moving inventories 10,451 -

34,576
347

(1,667)

1,591

12,868

1,386
53,514
14,436

10,451
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M % RS MR

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZE2010F3A31HIEFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’'D) 5. 2¥ERE)
Other segment information (CONT'D) HitbpBER (&)
Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision THERFTIELEAREBARAMADILE
maker but not included in the measurement of segment ERDPEENEZHRBMR -
result or segment assests:
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE&T FHET
Investment properties wEYEE 145,350 91,916
Interest in associates g N s 8,174 8,071
Increase (decrease) in fair value KEWMEZ NTEE
of investment properties 30 Ok 2>) 37,134 (16,736)
Interest expense B 10,692 22,528
Impairment loss recognised in respect EEREEZRERE - KD
of goodwill — unallocated - 1,569
Geographical segments WESE
The Group’s operations are located in North America, Europe, AEBZEBHMHRILE - BN - BF(E
Hong Kong (place of domicile), Mainland China, Japan and fEih2h) ~ REARE - BA - 8B & H
Korea and other countries. X o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2010
HZE2010F3A31HIEFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’'D) 5. DEEBER(E)
Geographical segments (CONT'D) WESE(E)
The Group’s revenue from external customers (based on REEKRKGINBEL Z2WARE P FR1EH
location of customers) and information about its non-current R)REBBEERHEE(REEMEHE)
assets by geographical location of the assets are detailed ZEBWT
below:
Revenue from
external customers Non-current
Year ended 31 March assets (note)
REIEEF ZWA
BZE3A3MHILEE ERENEE (5T
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T TR T
United States of America EE 470,094 829,352 6,849 8,444
Europe EM 144,107 356,038 - =
Canada mex 107,434 29,147 185 301
Mainland China elEy N 1,864 85 157,830 178,825
Japan and Korea H 7 K& 2 379 = - =
Hong Kong &5 235 39,549 256,570 275,382
Other countries H B =R 14,149 26,891 - 77
738,262 1,281,062 421,434 463,029

Note: Non-current assests excluded available-for-sale investments
and deferred tax assets.

N

M : FRBDEETEEIHKEZRE
MIBEERIBEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R e M % RS MR

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZE2010F3A31HIEFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONT’D) 5. HEER(Z
Information about major customers EBETEEREZ2EE
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years EREEGLMAEBRRABAZEIONDNA FZE
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group PUAEG T :

are as follows:

2010 2009

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Customer A’ BEPA 131,485 N/AA 53 A2

Customer B! =FB! 127,525 149,476

Customer C' xFEC 80,294 213,252

Customer D' ZFD! N/AT 3 2 217,165

Customer E! EPBE N/A T 38 F2 177,678
! Revenue from electronic products. f REEFEMIWA °

2 The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% 2 EEWMAL RERAEEHESBE

of the total sales of the Group. Z10% A E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A B R R MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2010
HZE2010F3A31HIEFE

N

OTHER INCOME 6. HftlgA
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Other income includes: HiA B :
Claims received BEGEEA - 302
Commission e 753 3,362
Dividend income from AHEEZIRE 2R E W=
available-for-sale investments 255 356
Dividend income from BIEEE 2R E 2 REMaR
investments held-for-trading 161 3
Exchange gain, net &5 Wz 58 5,138 =
Gain on disposal of prepaid & TR ERIE 2 s A
lease payments 2,661 -
Interest income F Bk 162 525
(Loss) gain on disposal of HEYE -« BE K&
property, plant and equipment 2 (E518) 5 A (168) 15,268
Rental income (note) e Was (BsE) 4,879 4,689
Repairing income e 21 2,333
Sale of scrap materials [EE R E s 839 1,623

Note: Outgoings of HK$182,000 (2009: HK$406,000) were
incurred resulting in net rental income of HK$4,697,000

(2009: HK$4,283,000).

FffaE © 182,000/ 7T (20094F : 406,000/
70) A& W FEE4,697,00058 7T
(20094F : 4,283,000/8 70 ) FTE A

2 o

FINANCE COSTS 7. BERX
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT

Interest on borrowings wholly ERAFREBHEEZ

repayable within five years BEZHE 10,692 22,528
—Z-ZFEFH AREKRERAR 83
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VRN

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZE2010F3A31HILEFE

8. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 8. KRHAIEIR
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Loss before taxation has been FRE AT B 1 2 st E E 0Bk

arrived at after charging:

Allowance for doubtful debts RARB A 2,005 14,436
Allowance for obsolete and PRE RBIE 2 7 BB S

slow-moving inventories 11,291 10,451
Amortisation of product /2 b B R K AN 5H

development costs (FEATTHERA)

(included in administrative expenses) 260 347
Auditors’ remuneration % E0EN B & 3,854 3,858
Depreciation of property, Y BE RERBETE

plant and equipment 47,380 53,514
Exchange loss, net PE 518 - F - 6,620
Impairment loss recognised in BRI EEERE ZREERE

respect of available-for-sale (FFATTHERAN)

investments (included in

administrative expenses) 2 4
Impairment loss recognised EEREE ZREEE

in respect of goodwill (FEATTHERA)

(included in administrative expenses) - 1,569
Impairment loss recognised in respect  E & W IBRER 2 BUEEE

of other receivables 7,767 -
Minimum lease payments HEEFZRERNHERS I

under operating leases in respect

of rented premises 6,653 10,301
Release of prepaid lease payments T & IR 121 1,386
Research and development e RFEEKA (FizEa))

costs (note (a)) 35,477 42,813
Staff costs including directors’ BIXRA - BEEEME (D))

remuneration (note (b)) 101,081 154,104
Notes: MisE :

(a) The research and development costs included staff costs (a) MREAEXABEEIKAX
of HK$6,833,000 (2009: HK$11,070,000). 6,833,000/ 7T (2009%F : 11,070,000
BIT) °
(b) The staff costs for the year included retirement (b) REE 7 B ITRABIERINEF T
benefits scheme contributions of HK$1,359,000 (2009: 2|45 1,359,000/8 7T (20094 :
HK$1,868,000) and share-based payments of HK$73,000 1,868,000/ 7T ) & BARRAD 2 1+ 2 4+
(2009: HK$142,000). 73,000/ 7T (20094 : 142,000/
TT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VRSN

For the year ended 31 March 2010

EZ22010F3A31HIEFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EEkEEM=
EMOLUMENTS
Details of emoluments paid by the Group to each of the REBEENSESCHEFBOT ¢

directors are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BZE20105F3A31HLEE

Salaries
and other Performance Retirement

short term related benefits
employee incentive scheme Total
Fees benefits payments contributions emoluments
FER
Hipie s aX RINER

[k BEEA REAH SRR ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TEx TET TEx TET
Executive directors: HTES:
Lau Sak Hong, Philip 2% - 6,425 - 12 6,437
Lau Sak Kai, Anthony ElE: - 1,013 - 12 1,025
Lau Sak Yuk, Andy 2|88 - 890 - 12 902
Non-executive director: FHITES
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter #E1RH 50 - - - 50
Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors:
Ho Hau Chong, Norman Bk 50 = = = 50
Chan Chak Chung BE 50 - - - 50
Chuck Winston Calptor ERE 50 - - - 50
200 8,328 - 36 8,564
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VRN

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZE2010F3A31HILEFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9. EEKEEME(E
EMOLUMENTS (CONT'D)
For the year ended 31 March 2009 EHZE2009F3A31HLLFE
Salaries

and other  Performance Retirement

short term related benefits
employee incentive scheme Total
Fees benefits payments contributions  emoluments
ek
Hit 5 5 B RN

ik B & H REMH st I it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TR THT TR
Executive directors: HTES:
Lau Sak Hong, Philip 215 % 50 6,062 133 190 6,435
Lau Sak Kai, Anthony e 50 1,377 46 67 1,540
Lau Sak Yuk, Andy 258 50 1,231 46 60 1,387
Non-executive director: FHTES
Hon Sheung Tin, Peter #EiHH 109 24 = = 133
Independent non-executive BYFHITES

directors:
Ho Hau Chong, Norman il E 8 50 - - - 50
Chan Chak Chung B {h 50 = = = 50
Chuck Winston Calptor 2R E 50 - - - 50
409 8,694 225 317 9,645

The performance related incentive payments are determined ENERMNRNI2ZETIRAARERAEE
with reference to performance of the individual and the HE2010F3A31BEMFEZF2RRAR
Group’s performance and profitability for each of the two AFE I MEE °

years ended 31 March 2010.
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e IR E M
For the year ended 31 March 2010
B ZE2010F3A31HIEFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 9.
EMOLUMENTS (CONT'D)

Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included three
(2009: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are
set out above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2009:
two) highest paid employees are as follows:

EEkEEME(E)

(=]

rEEREHES T2 AT BIE=%(2009
F:ZR)EF FARSEMEFBER
EXHE  HBWAB(2009F - BB )RS
THEEZMEWT

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Salaries and other short term e REMSEESET
employee benefits 2,397 3,106
Performance related incentive 1R 3R
payments - 80
Retirement benefits scheme RIRTE R AT SR
contributions 24 24
2,421 3,210

Emoluments of these employees were within the following
bands:

HEREME 2 SEHBEWNT ¢

Number of employees

BEAH
2010 2009
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T — 1,500,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T — 2,000,000/ 7T - 1

/\\ e T T
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZE2010F3A31HILEFE

10. TAXATION 10. BiIE
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
The charge comprises: M HEE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNFH
Current year KEE 60 46
Overprovision in prior years M FERERE (88) (1,830)
(28) (1,784)
Taxation in other jurisdictions Hh mEE 2 FiE
Current year REE 754 812
Under(over)provision in prior years BEFERGERE)BE 13 (22)
767 790
Deferred taxation (note 30) FEERTE (KTEE30) 729 2,274
1,468 1,280
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) EBFEFRAREE 2 (5T FERB R AR
of the estimated assessable profit for the year. £ 16.5% (20094 : 16.5% )T & °
On 26 June 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed 20086 H26H + BB EE@E(2008
the Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate profits tax FWAEHESR) B AaFERHRHRAR
rate by 1% to 16.5% effective from the year of assessment 1%%16.5% ' B2008% 20094 ¥ i F
2008/2009. Therefore, Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at EAER - Bt - BBEFEHAMEFEE 2 /&
16.5% of the estimated assessable profit for both years. STERBR IR E16.5%51 & -
Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the REMELERESE 2 BB DIRER AR 2
rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions. WATHEGFH o
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For the year ended 31 March 2010

B ZE2010F3A31HIEFE

10. TAXATION (CONT’'D) 10. BIE (&)
Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before NEE R ERAR S 2 WS R AT R B B AT E
taxation per the consolidated statement of comprehensive BEEOT ¢

income as follows:

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT
Loss before taxation BRI RIEE (75,712) (118,408)
Tax credit at the domestic income AT SRR 16.5% (20094 :
tax rate of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) 16.5%)sT 5 2 HIEH % (12,492) (19,537)
Tax effect of share of profits of associates B E R R wH 2 RIBRE (78) (95)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible NOIBER 2 RHIBRE
for taxation purposes 7,719 6,169
Tax effect of income not taxable for BERGN S s HIETE
taxation purposes (2,141) (2,974)
Effect of different tax rates of REMANVERREEE 2
subsidiaries operating in LINEENGIENEE R vl
other jurisdictions 567 (6,207)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERBREEEZHREXE 11,215 21,825
Tax effect of utilisation of tax B A LRI AR ER 2 IS
losses previously not recognised ZHIBRE (2,726) (75)
Effect of tax exemption granted MEARMERERE 2 ZE
to a subsidiary (note) (B &%) - (145)
Overprovision in prior years BAFEBERE (75) (1,852)
Decrease in opening deferred 3 FA A5 3 AR DA BR B 470 RE A 1H
tax liabilities resulting BRERD
from a decrease in applicable rate - (176)
Others Hity (521) 4,347
Taxation for the year REFEHIE 1,468 1,280
Note: The subsidiary is exempted from taxation in other MicE : ZWBARIRES M AERZ M
jurisdiction pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations KRB EER BB M E A REE 2
in that jurisdiction. I8 o
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZE2010F3A31HILEFE

11.

12.

DIVIDENDS 11.
The directors have resolved not to recommend a dividend

for the year ended 31 March 2010 (2009: nil).

LOSS PER SHARE 12.

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is
based on the following data:

Hﬁ/%\
EEFATEZRREHE201063A318
IEFE 7B (20094 : &) -

BREE
SRER BB BREN TARH

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss attributable to owners of the Rt EBREAREHEE
Company for the purposes of ZAREEE AEEER
basic and diluted loss per share (67,490) (110,186)

Number of shares

BRHE B
2010 2009
(restated)
(&=7)
Weighted average number of RETEERERNREEER
shares for the purposes of ZINEEFE D EE
basic and diluted loss per share 918,553,929 918,995,644

The number of shares for the purposes of calculating basic
and diluted earnings per share for both years has been
adjusted to reflect the open offer (see note 41(b)) completed
in July 2010.

The calculation of diluted loss per share for 2010 and 2009
does not assume the exercise of the outstanding share options
as it would result in a decrease in the loss per share for both
years and the exercise prices of those options are higher than
the average market price for shares for both years.
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
B ZE2010F3A31HIEFE

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. REWZ
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FH&T
Fair value of investment properties wEYHE 2 ANTFEE
At beginning of the year REA) 91,916 108,652
Transfer from leasehold properties ERAHEDE 16,300 =
Increase (decrease) in fair value NEEEEN ) 37,134 (16,736)
At end of the year MNEHEE 145,350 91,916
The carrying amount of HEYEREEBESIE
investment properties IR IA T HAFEEZ
comprises properties situated Tz W
on land held under:
Long leases in Hong Kong ERBARBALNESE 130,900 77,750
Long leases outside Hong Kong BB AIINARBABN A 14,450 14,166
145,350 91,916

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties have
been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out at the
end of the reporting period by an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected with the Group. The
valuations were arrived at by reference to market evidence
of transaction prices for similar properties.

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties. As at 31 March 2010,
the carrying amount of such property interests amounted
to HK$145,350,000 (2009: HK$91,916,000).

A\ =l

AEBMBREMEZ A FEETREEREE
VEREZBYAEMEXGEMNREH
RARPTETHESFEMS - ZEENSER
BYEMEXHEREER -

AEEARERORH AR K HEKE A B
EREZZE2HMERSANAFEER
XetE - TARINEREDE - K2010
F3A3NEB ZEVEREZEEER
145,350,000/ 7C (20094 : 91,916,000/%
JT) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZE2010F3A31HILEFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. V¥ - BERRE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold  Computer and Motor  Plant and Construction
properties equipment equipment  vehicles machinery in progress Total
G £B
HENE EERE K#%fE RE BEREE ERIE @
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FEL FEL T FEL TEL T TEL
COST OR VALUATION BAMES G E
At 1 April 2008 1200854518 120,376 29372 111,262 15,388 543,670 419 820,487
Additions NE 145 1,277 901 555 31,698 = 34,576
Disposal HE (11,451) (1,045) (8,910) (3,766)  (12,750) - (37,922)
At 31 March 2009 2009534318 109,070 29,604 103,253 12177 562,618 419 817,141
Additions NE - 412 225 214 17,989 = 18,840
Disposal HE - (92) (136) (1,137) = @19  (1,784)
Transfer to investment ERERENE (H:)
properties (note) (8,300) - - - - - (8,300)
At 31 March 2010 12010635318 100,770 29,924 103,342 11,254 580,607 - 825897
Comprising: B
At cost KAE 79,670 29,924 103,342 11,254 580,607 - 804,797
At valuation - 1991 fHE—-1991F 21,100 - - - - - 21,100
100,770 29,924 103,342 11,254 580,607 - 825897
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 April 2008 1200854518 22,670 19,792 90,643 12,199 376,608 - 521,912
Provided for the year RERE 2,257 2,261 4,067 724 44,205 = 53,514
Eliminated on disposal L E R (7,178) (941) (7,849) (3,490)  (11,392) - (30,850)
At 31 March 2009 12009635318 17,749 21,112 86,861 9,433 409,421 - 544,576
Provided for the year RERE 1,713 1,993 3,267 546 39,861 - 47380
Eliminated on disposal L E R - (60) (83) (940) - = (1,083)
Eliminated on transfer ERE (2,6298) - - - - = (2,628)
At 31 March 2010 12010635318 16,834 23,045 90,045 9,039 449,282 - 588,245
CARRYING VALUES EHE
At 31 March 2010 12010635318 83,936 6,879 13,297 2,215 131,325 - 237,652
At 31 March 2009 200963 /318 91,321 8,492 16,392 2,744 153,197 419 272,565

92
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
BEZ2010F3A31HIEFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. N - BERSZE(E)

(CONT’D)

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2010, the management BaE : B =2010F3A31HILFE 1
resolved to rent out certain of its leasehold properties EBZAMRIIBALTEBARRGTNET
to outsiders for rental income and ended the owner THEMEUWERAS W AT R IEE
occupation. These properties should be accounted for as TR - ZEVEEINIEREDY
investment properties. Upon the transfer from property, ¥ -B0YE BMERIBEEERZRXR
plant and equipment to investment properties, these BYER  ZSYWEESEH mMA
properties were revalued with the increase in fair value of FBE 21%E10,628,000/ 5T 5t A
HK$10,628,000 credited to the other property valuation Hib G EREE -
reserve.

The cost or valuation of leasehold properties in Hong Kong, EREMNHEERBAREN S DR S i K2

which included prepaid lease payments that cannot be By - BAMEEME ZKAESRGE

allocated reliably between the land and building elements, is RAVFFHENMEREERIN G RAREME -

depreciated over forty years and after taking into account of MR BEBAIMEE Z FAE 3 2 18 F 2 R

the estimated residual value. The cost of buildings situated NEGEEZSOFH(MMBREFH) ALY

on leasehold land outside Hong Kong is amortised over a FTeAEHAGT E 3 -

period of fifty years or, where shorter, the remaining term
of the leases on a straight line basis.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of other property, HEZE - BERRE(EEIERIN T
plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, REEETA] B FE IR S sr iR AT E T E A
over their estimated useful lives, using the reducing balance WSHEKA - FTRFEEET ¢

method at the following rates per annum:

Computer equipment 25% B 25%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10 - 25% R - HERRE 10 - 25%
Motor vehicles 20 - 25% Va 20 - 25%
Plant and machinery 15 - 30% T 5 I 25 15 - 30%
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZE2010F3A31HILEFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥ BERRE (&)
(CONT’D)
The carrying value of the leasehold properties shown above FASEMERREULRATINROFTE 2+
comprises properties situated on land held under: W BREEA :
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Long leases in Hong Kong ERBURBHALNES 20,529 26,621
Medium term leases outside Hong Kong £ & ASNAREIFAHAE 63,407 64,700
83,936 91,321

The valuation of leasehold properties was carried out by a
firm of independent professional valuers in 1991 on an open
market value for existing use basis. The Group has adopted
the transitional relief provided by paragraph 80A of HKAS
16 from the requirement to make revaluation on a regular
basis of the Group’s leasehold properties and, accordingly,
no further revaluation of leasehold properties will be carried
out. Had these leasehold properties with a carrying amount
at 31 March 2010 of HK$20,529,000 (2009: HK$26,621,000)
been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, the carrying value of the
leasehold properties at 31 March 2010 would have been
stated at HK$15,641,000 (2009: HK$20,554,000).

HEMEH KRB FEGEMTNI19914F
RERAREEZ AFTETUER - A%
EHMNE BRI E 1698 E80AR B MR
EEHEGAERRENE 2 BERH R
UL BEE —SERBAEME - MASWE
201043 A31H BRE & /20,529,000 7T
(20094 : 26,621,000/ 7T ) IR A E R R 5T
MERZFREREIRE  HEWZR2010
F3A318 2 BREFERK A 715,641,000%
JL(20094F : 20,554,000/ L) °

15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 15. ENHEERIE
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise: AEBZENEERIEDLRE
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEx T
Leasehold land held under medium EBABRINAFR HAFH LY
term leases outside Hong Kong BEZHE T 3,895 65,062
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HEREBNDTA :
Current asset MBEE 121 1,386
Non-current asset ERBEE 3,774 63,676
3,895 65,062
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
B ZE2010F3A31HIEFE

16. PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT COSTS 16. EmBERAA
HK$'000
FHET
COST HAME
At 1 April 2008, 31 March 2009 R2008F481H + 200943 A31H
and 31 March 2010 %2010F3AH31H 1,732
AMORTISATION 85
At 1 April 2008 K2008F4A1H 1,125
Charge for the year FEHR 347
At 31 March 2009 7200943 A31H 1,472
Charge for the year FER 260
At 31 March 2010 20103 A31H 1,732
CARRYING VALUE IREE
At 31 March 2010 20103 A31H -
At 31 March 2009 R2009%3A31H 260
Product development costs are amortised over a period of ERZEBRNAUNEGRENAFEHREH -

five years on a straight line basis.
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZE2010F3A31HILEFE

17. GOODWILL 17. B8
HK$'000
FH&T
COST HAME
At 1 April 2008 R2008F4 A 1H 27,671
Acquisition/deemed acquisition of W hE 4545 A U E T B A A
additional interests in subsidiaries HHOME 2 944
Deemed partial disposal of a subsidiary #%18 & & W B2 =l 20 = (505)
At 31 March 2009 R2009%3 A31H 28,110
Deemed partial disposal of a subsidiary #%18 & & W B 2 =l 2 = (57)
At 31 March 2010 MR2010%3A31H 28,053
IMPAIRMENT BE
Impairment losses recognised in HZE2009F3A31HILFE
profit or loss during the year ended RIBEER 2R EEE R
31 March 2009 and balance at 20093318 &
31 March 2009 and 31 March 2010 201093 A318 2 &% (1,569)
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 31 March 2010 K2010%3A31H 26,484
At 31 March 2009 R2009%3 A31H 26,541

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are
disclosed in note 18.

18. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill of carrying
value amounting to HK$26,484,000 (2009: HK$26,541,000)
as set out in note 17 has been allocated to three cash-
generating units (“CGUs"), including three subsidiaries in
the design, manufacture and sale of electronic products
segment amounting to HK$8,111,000, HK$17,665,000 and
HK$708,000 (2009: HK$8,111,000, HK$17,722,000 and
HK$708,000), respectively. During the year ended 31 March
2009, full impairment loss was recognised in respect of
goodwill of HK$1,569,000 which was related to a subsidiary
engaged in e-business but became inactive.
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
B ZE2010F3A31HIEFE

18.

19.

N

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL 18. BEZREAIR (&)
(CONT’D)
The recoverable amount of the relevant CGUs has been HERESEEBMMNAIKESEDIEERE
determined on the basis of value in use calculation. The BEE stEERAEEMEEEZRZEN
key assumptions for the value in use calculation are those BRIRE MERERPRFEHANKAFRNBEEKX
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected KZIBEHEE) - B ERAKRT AL R (&5
changes to revenue and direct costs during budgeted period. BEIR R . b R M TR IR A B R (E
The management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates RIS EEBMNEFERBOE o RA K
that reflect current market assessments of the time value BN A 2 B BIRIRAE 5] R BT I5 R R E
of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. Changes in R HAE fE (T o
revenue and direct costs are based on past practices and
expectations of future changes in the market.
During the year, the Group performed impairment review RAFE  REBEREEEEH ALK AFR
for goodwill based on cash flow forecasts derived from the NP KEE2ESRETEA - AR X
most recent financial budget for the next five years approved 7.55% (20094F : 7.43% ) ZEHEER(E -
by the management using a discount rate of 7.55% (2009: AR EEBESEA BN 2RO 45EEARE
7.43%). As the recoverable amount of the relevant calls B REE R ERRRE -
exceeds the carrying value of goodwill, no impairment loss
is recognised.
INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES 19. BiEBEQTES
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Cost of investment in associates, REEE RN FIREKA
unlisted JEET™ 9,310 9,310
Share of post-acquisition profits, FE(R U EE &R A -
net of dividend received kB W RE 5 (1,136) (1,239)
8,174 8,071
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZE2010F3A31HILEFE

19. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONT'D) 19.

Details of the Group’s associates are as follows:

FELEE N R ()
AEBZBEARFBMT

Form of Place of Attributable
business registration/  Nominal value of equity interest
Name of associate structure operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
AEEER
BenmEn ERABES 2/ EEnE HAMEREE RARER TEEK
2010 2009
Danehill Investments Limited Cayman HK$7,000,000 48.28% 48.28% Investment holding
(Holdings) Limited liability Islands
company
BEREMELR HERS 7,000,000/ 7T REER
Interforce Limited Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 30% 30% Trading in electronic
("Interforce”) liability products
company
EABRAF BEREERR  FR 500,000/ 7T EEETEM

(TE#])

The associates are indirectly held by the Company through
its wholly-owned subsidiaries.

Included in the cost of investment in associates is goodwill of
HK$3,779,000 (2009: HK$3,779,000) arising on acquisition
of an associate in prior years.
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
B ZE2010F3A31HIEFE

19.

20.

T

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (CONT’D) 19.

The summarised financial information in respect of the

Group’s associates is set out below:

FEAG B N R R (

-
ERAKEBRERRZMBERBMINET

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FET
Total assets AEHAE 31,220 24,545
Total liabilities BEBE (18,660) (12,344)
Net assets BEFE 12,560 12,201
Share of net assets EiHEEFE 4,395 4,292
Turnover LR 136,907 211,642
Profit for the year N [ i A 1,589 1,997
Share of profits and other FEAG B & A Bl A &
comprehensive income of associates H 2wl 472 578
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. AIMHEHEZRE
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Equity securities (NG
Unlisted shares, at cost FE LR D - AR 26,690 26,690
Less: Impairment losses recognised B BRERREEE (2,650) (2,650)
24,040 24,040
Listed shares outside Hong Kong, RBEBRIN ETR®D
at fair value BEATEE 6 8
24,046 24,048
Analysed for reporting purposes as: HEREMNDTA :
Non-current asset EMBEE 24,046 24,048
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZ2010F3A31HILFE

20.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
(CONT’D)

At the end of the reporting period, all listed shares included

INVESTMENTS

in available-for-sale investments are stated at fair value.
Fair values of these investments have been determined by
reference to bid prices quoted in active markets.

The above unlisted investments represent investments in
unlisted equity securities issued by private entities incorporated
in Hong Kong. They are measured at cost less impairment
loss at the end of the reporting period because the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair
values cannot be measured reliably.

Included in unlisted equity securities was an investment of
17% (2009: 17%) equity interest in Net Plus Company Limited
(“Net Plus”), a company engaged in investment holding
and provision of healthcare related services. An impairment
loss of HK$2,500,000 was recognised in the consolidated
financial statements in prior years. At 31 March 2010, the
directors reviewed the recoverability of its carrying amount
of HK$23,000,000 (2009: HK$23,000,000) with reference to
the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected
to arise from the investment and considered that the carrying
value of the interest in Net Plus is recoverable.
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RBEBRRER - AIRHEZREZME LD
BABHARFEEIR - HERELATFE
BERSELZRMEMBEAEBERE °

LI ETRE RN EREMALILAER
BITZHELTERAEFESRE - IRAERF
EEMAFTHEEER  NAREEFRB /AL
SR EERNFEE - Hit%E ?xéb":‘#lﬁ.:.
A R 3% B A BB (B S 1R AT B

FELEMRAFESPBIERESIRE LR KIZ
R 2 58 B9 BR 7% 2 2 BINet Plus Company
Limited ([Net Plus|)217% (20094 : 17%)
BAEREE - BEFECREETHRE
HE 5250 B 5 182,500,000/ 7T © 201043 A
310 - EF2EBHMREZREZEBE
HRenERERENEKREE23,000,000%8
7.(20094F : 23,000,0007% 7T ) 2 A U [B] 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VB RE N

For the year ended 31 March 2010
B ZE2010F3A31HIEFE

21.

FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT 21.
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(ii)

ERMEE TTESRMTIA

BEERBAFEESARRZ

Assets Liabilities
BE af5
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT TR THT
Financial assets designated (i) LAFBEEZET
at fair value through profit RIEATEETA
or loss settled on net basis: BRZeREAE
Buy-write certificates on: TIHIBEZBEAHERE -
— equity securities listed in —-REBELETZ
Hong Kong IR % 3 258 - -
— equity securities listed —IRABEN LT
outside Hong Kong ZIRARE S - 540 - -
3 798 - -
Derivative financial instruments (i) WEFBEEE 2 IFET
not designated as hedging BYWIAZ
instruments settled on net PTEERMIE
basis:
Options on equity securities REBFIET 2
listed outside Hong Kong A EH B - - (275) (50)
3 798 (275) (50)
—EZ-ZFEFH AREKRERAR 101
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BZE2010F3A31HIEFE

21.

22.

FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED AT 21. TSR ATPEBETABHRE 2
FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/ ﬁrﬂ:’f?/ﬁiﬁ MIAE)
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONT'D)
The buy-write certificates contain embedded derivatives which BERHZEASE T ANERTYEE 2]
are not closely related to the host contracts, accordingly, the ARPTETER At ' FTEAHAHNEIETE
entire combined contracts have been designed as financial BEAFEEFABZZEMEE °
assets at fair value through profit or loss.
On inception of the buy-write certificates, the strike price of RETZBEHEERERN  BEETCHERAE
the underlying equity securities, maturity date and observation A 74T - BIHI R REIERER o AR EIRH
period has been determined. At the end of each observation RRESE BN EEREWE - BBRAE
period or on maturity of the buy-write certificates, market HEZMESETEBETLER - MEEF
price of the underlying equity securities will be compared to HEBEZTESRITEE  BEHMHER
the strike price. The buy-write certificates will be terminated W FRIAR ST - MBS RNER
and settled in cash if the market price is higher than strike MEERETHEE  HHEHEBBUARERFE
price. The buy-write certificates will be settled in shares if i
the market price is lower than the strike price.
The fair values of buy-write certificates are determined by BEMEZE 2 A EBE BRI F&ELEB
securities brokers using valuation models based on inputs ﬁﬁﬁ‘wﬁdﬁffﬁﬁﬂ%$%‘%2%{ﬁ R E &
such as share price, volatility, dividend yield of the underlying B REHIBEFE 2 EMET, MR ARE
equity securities and the fair values of options on equity HF7EER AL EBEIIZ2BARTEEE
securities are determined with reference to quoted market MmETE °
ask prices.
INVENTORIES 22. &
2010 2009
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Raw materials R R 98,974 116,511
Work in progress 8 M 6,936 7,581
Finished goods 2P 219,808 278,379
325,718 402,471
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense in RAFE  REAE2EWRERERAT L

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

during the year amounted to HK$610,322,000 (2009:
HK$1,024,197,000).
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B ZE2010F3A31HIEFE

23. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 23. FEWERIE - IR& R FE(TZIE

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FH&T
Trade debtors JEWE 5 BR1E 66,135 102,003
Deposits with securities brokers BHLRLZIRE 4,785 3,034
Advances to suppliers BT HIER 15,385 30,585
Prepayments and other receivables TE A SR IE K E A e KGR IR 28,942 24,489
Consideration receivable for HEME - BEREHEZ
disposal of property, FEW AR
plant and equipment - 21,340
115,247 181,451
The aged analysis of trade debtors net of allowance for R EHEREREZAHZ2Y] 2 EKE 58
doubtful debts presented based on the invoice date at the T8 (% REREHE ) ZEREE DT T ¢
end of the reporting period is as follows:
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
0 - 30 days 0 - 30H 37,640 67,376
31 — 60 days 31 - 60H 5,802 5,002
61 — 90 days 61 - 90H 4,690 9,338
Over 90 days im0 H 18,003 20,287
66,135 102,003
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZE2010F3A31HIEFE

23.

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(CONT'D)

The Group allows an average credit period ranging from 30
days to 90 days to its trade customers. Before accepting
any new customers, the management will internally assess
the credit quality of the potential customer and define
appropriate credit limits. Management closely monitors the
credit quality of trade and other receivables and considers
the trade and other receivables that are neither past due

nor impaired to be of a good quality.

Included in the Group’s trade debtors are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$22,320,000 (2009:
HK$20,998,000) which are past due as at the reporting date
for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The
directors of the Company determined that these receivables

23.

J;”ELI%EEIE - BERFENRE

AEBEGKTEESZEPZREMN T30
E£90R - REMEMHELA - BEEEH
A EEETEFP 2 EEERRAIVEE
EERE EEERYVEREZREMER
RIBZEEER  URA/RBHTEREZ

B hEMEWERE I ERRYM -

AREB2EKRESEERIEEEAE
22,320,000/ 7 (20094 : 20,998,000/ 7T.)
ZEWERTE  RREBHEaN  BEREE
WARIEH R EBERE - NARZEEHET
ERWERIEABREEEZRFEEHAL

are either due from customers of good credit quality with no B BP 2 HRIESAREERBRE - NEH
history of default or covered by credit insurance. The Group W Rt UL S AR B TR HE -
does not hold any collateral over these balances.
The aged analysis of trade debtors which are past due but BEa B EERE B E FRIE 2 RE ST
not impaired is as follows: LU
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&T
31 — 60 days 31 - 60H - 711
61 — 90 days 61 -90H 4,317 -
Over 90 days HBiE90H 18,003 20,287
22,320 20,998

Based on the experience of the management and repayment
record of the customers, trade receivables which are past
due but not impaired and not associated with litigations
are generally recoverable. For those balances associated
with litigations, the directors of the Company will assess
the cases based on legal advices from lawyers and provide
allowance for the irrecoverable debts.
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B ZE2010F3A31HIEFE

23. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

23. ERERE - RERANTRE

(CONT’D) (#&)
Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts RERERD
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
At beginning of the year F£9 30,872 16,436
Impairment losses recognised B iR EWARIE 2 R EE 1R
on debtors 2,005 14,436
Amount written off i iE e =8 (2,606) =
At end of the year FIR 30,271 30,872
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually AEEELEMBANESREZEWRE K

impaired trade debtors with an aggregated balance of
HK$28,212,000 (2009: HK$28,813,000) which have either
been placed under liquidation or in financial difficulties.

The management has withdrawn a litigation against a trade
debtor in prior year as they consider that the legal and
professional expenses involved will be high, and the related
debtor balance of HK$2,059,000 (2009: HK$2,059,000) was
individually impaired.

Included in trade debtors are debts discounted with recourse
amounting to HK$24,215,000 (2009: HK$3,310,000) and
factored debtors amounting to nil (2009: HK$35,643,000).
For debts discounted with recourse and factored debtors,
the Group will need to repay the financial institutions if
there are credit losses on the receivables before the end
of discounting/factoring period, accordingly, the Group
continues to recognise the full carrying amount of those
debtors and has recognised the cash received as a secured
borrowing (see note 28).

A\ =l

TH 48 45 5% 528,212,000/ 7T (20094 :
28,813,000 7m) ' RERZERFEFHR
a8 B IR & o

EEECRBTFERDE —REFHEBHA
ZEFEA RS RZEEREXBRE
gRS - mAERERRIA#Z#R2,059,00078
J£(20094F : 2,059,000/ 7T ) E @ RIRIE °

BRESRERDFEAEBREMRER
24,215,000 7£.(20094F : 3,310,0005% 7T ) K&
B B3R B AR TE T 75 7T (20094F : 35,643,000
BT o BLEBRERLIRER R E RLIR EUAR
BmE - WRRLIR A4 ﬁiﬁuﬂﬁuﬁzﬁﬁlﬁﬁfﬁf
BEE  AAEERTEEnSBMEER

it - $%lﬁ@éﬁ%§ﬁ§m23ﬁ’éuﬁzﬁﬁlﬁzﬁﬁ
AfE  WEREKE e AFERBEE(RHE
28) °
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZE2010F3A31HIEFE

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO ASSOCIATES 24. W FEAEZATKE

The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable ERZBLAEEM RN ER—EREE
within one year. SKIFEE -
25. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING 25. FEEEZRE
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Listed securities TS
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong RER L2 RAF S 3,473 1,253
Equity securities listed outside RBEBRIN L 2 RAE 5
Hong Kong 10,404 5,702
13,877 6,955
26. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 26. SBITEERES
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group RITEGTRREBREASEMFRS - A&
and short term bank deposits with an original maturity of BER=EA AR BFHEFHX
three months or less at an average interest rate of 0.01% £0.01E (20094 : 0.01[E) 2 R EIR1TTF
(2009: 0.01%) per annum. e
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B ZE2010F3A31HIEFE

27. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES 27.

BNEREARESER

2010 2009

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT FAT

Trade creditors BN E HERE 92,621 120,323
Royalty and withholding tax payable FENERE R IENT 15,181 15,488
Other creditors and accrued expenses  EfhE(TBETE K ETFI X 36,977 49,416
144,779 185,227

The aged analysis of trade creditors presented based on

RBEHRRZEZARZIZENE R

the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as HZREDTAT
follows:

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
0 - 30 days 0-30H 18,684 29,264
31 — 60 days 31 -60H 16,859 16,914
61 — 90 days 61 -90H 2,032 19,641
Over 90 days 90 H 55,046 54,504
92,621 120,323

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90

days.

T

REEm FHEREHR0A -
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BZE2010F3A31HIEFE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. BORROWINGS =
2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Borrowings comprise the followings: BEBETNIFIE :
Trust receipts and import loans EtE R A BB 48,696 89,547
Short term loans EHEE R 119,197 166,521
Loans related to bills discounted BHEEERENE
with recourse EBRZER 24,215 3,310
Bank loan RITER 27,281 38,390
Debt factoring loans EREAL IR B - 28,323
219,389 326,091
Analysed as: DT
Secured B A 25,613 32,879
Unsecured IR 193,776 293,212
219,389 326,091
The borrowings are repayable as follows: EEEEEMT :
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&IT
On demand or within one year HEE2REH—FR 219,389 302,309
More than one year but not exceeding —FR&EMFNR
two years - 11,110
More than two years but not more than WERERFER
five years - 12,672
219,389 326,091
Less: Amounts due within one year B REBERR
shown under current liabilities —FRNEH 2 FRIE (219,389) (302,309)
- 23,782
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B ZE2010F3A31HIEFE

28.

BORROWINGS (CONT’'D)

The Group’s borrowings are floating-rate borrowings which are
interest bearing at a range from 1.1% to 3.7% (2009: 0.7 %
to 4.4%) per annum. Interest is repriced every month.

At 31 March 2010, the Group's bank overdrafts bear interest
at floating-rate. The interest was charged at an average
interest rate of 5.0% (2009: nil) per annum. Interest was

29. BANK OVERDRAFTS
repriced every month.
30. DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised and movements thereon during the current and
prior years:

28.

29.

30.

BE(E)

REBZBERZEEE  BREMNEIIE
Z37[E (20094 : 0.7EE4 4B )5tE - A
R ERESAEHEME -

RITEX

MR2010F3A31H ' AEBE ZFE1TE IR
FENFIEEE - BEFBIRFEHIFEFE5.0
[E(2009% : )& WREBAEHT
Eo

I FEBL TR
AFERBEFHORBEZETHE
(Bf)AEREBBMT :

Accelerated Revaluation

tax of investment Tax
depreciation properties losses Others Total
MEHRERE RENEER HESB Hity L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT AT AT AT TR
(note)
(FfsE)
At 1 April 2008 M2008F4 518 (6,322) (5,937) 7,027 7,603 2,371
Effect of change in tax rate MEEH I HE 364 141 (313) (16) 176
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (8) FABR (1,661) 2,250 (1,563) (1,476) (2,450)
At 31 March 2009 M2009%3H31H (7,619) (3,546) 5,151 6,111 97
Credit (charge) to profit or loss A (N8) B 2,768 (3,237) 2,413 (2,673) (729)
Charge to other property REMYE S REENR
revaluation reserve - (590) - - (590)
A 31 March 2010 120103 A31H (4,851) (7,373) 7,564 3,438 (1,222)

Note:

Others mainly represent temporary difference arising from

unrealised profits on inventories.

Mt HMERHEFEZRBRENME
EZERER -

—T-TEFH ABERERAT

A\ e T T
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BZE2010F3A31HIEFE

30. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONT'D)

For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred
tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

30.

EERE(Z)
BRBAMBEHRRBR2IITHE  ETEE
HEAERBEOYY - BAEMBRERR
CEEFEEBITOT -

2010 2009

HK$'000 HK$'000

T FHET

Deferred tax assets FRIEFRTBE E 3,245 5,918
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRIBRE (4,467) (5,821)
(1,222) 97

The Group has not recognised deferred tax asset in respect
of tax losses of HK$250,894,000 (2009: HK$199,082,000)
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included
in the unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$85,120,000
(2009: HK$184,072,000) that will expire in the years of
2011 to 2030 (2009: 2010 to 2023), other tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the temporary differences
attributable to the undistributed retained profits earned by the
subsidiaries in People’s Republic of China (“PRC") amounting
to approximately HK$11,463,000 (2009: HK$8,410,000)
starting from 1 January 2008 under the New Law of PRC
that requires withholding tax upon the distribution of such
profits to the shareholders as the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
B ZE2010F3A31HIEFE

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. BR&
Number
of shares HK$'000
& & B AT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.40 each FREE0.40/8 T 2 iR
Authorised: SEERAN
At 1 April 2008, 31 March 2009 R2008F481H -
and 31 March 2010 20093 A318 K& 1,250,000,000 500,000
20103 A31H

Issued and fully paid: BETRERRKRA :

At 1 April 2008 200844 A1 H 790,378,828 316,151
Repurchase of shares BE B f% 19 (5,290,000) (2,116)
At 31 March 2009 and 31 March 2010 F 20094 201043 H31H 785,088,828 314,035

Details of the changes in the share capital of the Company ARRZEAEHFBOT ¢

are as follows:

(a) The Company repurchased its own shares on the Stock (a) H F£2009%3A31HIEFERN » AN
Exchange during the year ended 31 March 2009 as ANEIEB R AT E AR D AT
follows:

Price per share
Number BRER Aggregate
Month of shares Lowest Highest consideration
B#% K& E &I 58] HARE
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT o AT
September 2008 200849 A 2,245,000 0.310 0.330 709
October 2008 20084108 3,045,000 0.100 0.275 495
5,290,000 1,204

The above shares were cancelled upon repurchase and
accordingly the issued share capital of the Company was
reduced by the nominal value of these shares. The discount
on repurchase was charged against accumulated profits.
An amount equivalent to the nominal value of the shares
cancelled was transferred from accumulated profits to the
capital redemption reserve.

All shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing
shares in all respects.

AR ERONERCDEE  BARFEETR
AERBHERNEERERLD - BEEZ
PR Ra MM - MEREHEROE
182 SEB Al R 50 7 88 18 3 IR A (e 1k
o

MBEEBETRONES T EEERRACET

2B FBRFHEE
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BZ2010F3A31HIEFE

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Share option schemes of the Company

The Company has a share option scheme which was approved
and adopted at the special general meeting of the Company
held on 12 September 2002 (the “Old Scheme”) for a period
of 5 years. The primary purpose was to provide incentives
or rewards to participants for their contribution to the
Group. Eligible participants of the Old Scheme included any
employees, non-executive directors, suppliers of goods or
services, customers, advisors or consultants and shareholders
of any member of the Group.

The maximum number of share options which might be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Old Scheme of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 10% while overall limit for all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised must not exceed 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant in any
12 months period up to the date of the grant should not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

The period within which the shares should be taken up under
an option was any period as determined by the Board, which
should not be more than 5 years from the date on which the
option was granted. The option might be exercised by the
grantee at any time during the option period. Each share
option vested immediately at the date of grant.

The subscription price of the share options was determined
by the Board, but would be no less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares on the offer date; (ii) the
average of the closing price of the shares of the 5 trading
day immediately preceding the offer date; or (iii) the nominal
value of the shares on the offer date.
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
B ZE2010F3A31HIEFE

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT’'D) 32.
Share option schemes of the Company (CONT’'D)

The offer of a grant of share options could be accepted
within 21 days from the date of offer. The consideration
for the grant was HK$1 and it would in no circumstance
be refundable.

The Old Scheme expired on 11 September 2007 and
thereafter, no more option could be granted pursuant to
the Old Scheme. In respect of the options already granted
under the Old Scheme, the provisions shall remain in force.
The movements of the share options granted to empolyees
pursuant to the Old Scheme were as follows:

STATEMENTS

BRESHE(E
ADT 2R ()

REBREZZOHNTERE AREFT218
AERP - RLBREZKER/BT - %2
BETABER T HIARE -

EFBER2007F981MAER - K&
BIAREET SR L BRE - siiRIRES
HeRb o BRENS - ARESUENRE
¥ RBEFHDAERERHZBREZE)
BRI

Number of share options

BREZE

Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
Exercise at beginning during at end
Date of grant price of the year the year of the year
RED REH
R BH TEE i AR AT B2 FREMN 1 R AT

HK$

BT

For the year ended BZE201063HA318IEFE
31 March 2010

2 November 2004 2004411 H2H 0.814 500,000 (500,000) -
5 January 2006 200641 H5H 0.89 12,000,000 - 12,000,000
13 November 2006 200611 A13H 1.45 2,000,000 - 2,000,000
4 January 2007 20071548 1.66 220,000 - 220,000
1 February 2007 200742 H1H 1.72 40,000 - 40,000
7 March 2007 200743 H7H 1.93 3,000,000 - 3,000,000

17,760,000 (500,000) 17,260,000

Exercisable at the end of the year &0 F17{E 17,260,000
Weighted average exercise MEFHTEE
price (HK$) (L) 1.07 0.814 1.15

“E-ZEFHR AHEBRAERIF 113

A\ T T~ —



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VRSN

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZE2010F3A31HIEFE

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT’'D) 32. IBRMESTEI(E)
Share option schemes of the Company (CONT'D) AP ZBRESE

Number of share options

BBIRES A
Outstanding Lapsed Outstanding
Exercise at beginning during at end
Date of grant price of the year the year of the year
REA REH
R A TEE i RAT FREN i ARAT R
HK$
BT
For the year ended EZE2009F3A31HILEFE
31 March 2009
10 October 2003 20034 10A10H 0.86 3,000,000 (3,000,000) -
2 November 2004 2004411828 0.814 500,000 - 500,000
5 January 2006 20061 A5H 0.89 12,000,000 - 12,000,000
13 November 2006 200611 H13H 1.45 2,000,000 = 2,000,000
4 January 2007 200741 74H 1.66 220,000 = 220,000
1 February 2007 20072 A1H 1.72 40,000 = 40,000
7 March 2007 200743 A7H 1.93 3,000,000 = 3,000,000
20,760,000 (3,000,000) 17,760,000
Exercisable at the end of the year F#&A] F17{E 17,760,000
Weighted average exercise INHEFIE1TRE
price (HK$) (%) 1.10 0.86 1.07
The above share options were granted for an exercise period LA SRR E R IR H EARE A F N THE o
of five years from the date of grant of the share options.
No share options have been granted to the directors of the AARWEBERE SR TESEMEBER
Company pursuant to the Old Scheme. o
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32.

N

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT'D)
Share option schemes of the Company (CONT'D)

A new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was
approved and adopted at the special general meeting of
the Company held on 15 January 2008 for a period of 10
years. The primary purpose is to recognise the contribution of
participants and to recruit and retain high calibre employees
and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group.
Eligible participants of the New Scheme included any full
time employees (including directors, whether executive or
non-executive and whether independent or not), suppliers,
consultants, agents and advisors of the Group.

The maximum number of share options which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the New
Scheme must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the shares
in issue at the adoption of the New Scheme on 15 January
2008 while overall limit for all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised must not exceed 30% of the shares

in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the option granted to each participant in any
12 month period up to the date of the grant shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue unless certain conditions
are fulfilled.

The period within which the shares must be taken up under
an option is any period as determined by the Board, which
shall not be more than 10 years from the date on which
the option is granted. The option may be exercised by the
grantee at any time during the option period.

32.

BRESE(E)
AN Z W)

AN X B FR2008F1 A158 £17 2 IR R4 Bl
Ae FRBERFEAAII0FE 2 BRES
E(T#rE) - TZEMNERKBLESE
ZER - BERGRBESEERRSIHAE
EABEEEEZIANER - #ardlzs
ERSLEADEASEZZ2BEE (REE
= THwATHERT R TR B LB
3D HHRER - A RIBRER

BIEFET E AT 2 T B AR 1 T i Al

EBEITz RO BE - TMIBAFTEIR
2008F 1 AISHRMBBZE TR 2
0% MEEEEEHRBE/FTEZEZBR
TEERERNDEE TIBBTREZEITR
%230% °

TR IR M 1T Mg TR 1T 2 iR 1D
TR BAEREBITRAZI% * BIE?
T EER -

REERERLE ZBMI2EAR - F28EE
#

BREATEBREAESTRHRE - EAATR
B IHERETBBI0F o AR AR RERE
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BZE2010F3A31HIEFE

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT'D) 32. IBRMESTEI(E)
Share option schemes of the Company (CONT'D) AATZHERESE(E)
The subscription price of the share options is determined BRECRBEREERAT HEEBE
by the Board, but will be no less than the highest of (i) BABEARN)E TRERES ARG 2Wm
the closing price of the shares on the offer date; (ii) the B (iNBEELBEHRERS B KRG FH
average of the closing price of shares on the 5 trading days B ¢ (iR m R H B B 2 E{E (A
immediately preceding the offer date; or (iii) the nominal SERBLE) -

value of the shares on the offer date.

The offer of a grant of share options can be accepted within REERE2EZLH A F T HAE28H
28 days from the date of offer. The consideration for the grant NEM - REBERECRERIBT - ZE
is HK$1 and it will in no circumstance be refundable. BEEABER T TARE o

The movements of the options granted to the employees BEHECAEER T 2 BREESIE)
pursuant to the New Scheme were as follows: mR

Number of share
options outstanding
at beginning and

Exercise at end
Date of grant price of the year
REDRFR
i A 8 i ARATEZ
TEE BREEE
HK$
BIT
For the year ended HZE2010F3A31HILLFE
31 March 2010
23 January 2008 200841 H23H 1.042 150,000
28 January 2008 200841 A28H 0.96 346,000
15 October 2008 20084108 15H 0.40 500,000
996,000
Exercisable at the end of the year FRAITIIE 996,000
Weighted average exercise INEFHITEE
price (HK$) (&) 0.69
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT’'D)
Share option schemes of the Company (CONT’'D)

32. BERESE(E)

KRAFZBRETEI(E)
Number of share options
BREZE
Outstanding Granted Outstanding
Exercise at beginning during at end
Date of grant price  of the year the year  of the year
RED REL
i B TEE i AR AT B FREB f8f R AT
HK$
BT
For the year ended EHZ2009F3A31HIEFE
31 March 2009
23 January 2008 20084 1H23H 1.042 150,000 — 150,000
28 January 2008 20084 1H28H 0.96 346,000 — 346,000
15 October 2008 2008 10H15H 0.40 = 500,000 500,000
496,000 500,000 996,000
Exercisable at the end of the year F&\ F17{E 996,000
Weighted average exercise MEFHTEE
price (HK$) (%) 0.98 0.40 0.69

The above share options were granted for an exercise period
of ten years from the date of grant of the share options

and vested immediately.

No share options have been granted to the directors of the

Company pursuant to the New Scheme.

Total consideration received during the year from employees
for taking up the options granted amounted to nil (2009:
HK$1).

A LB R R B R+ ARTT RN

BE -

ARAR L ERBEFFER TEZTEAMBER

T e

AEFR - LUWEIE B F B 408 I
2R BAEZ(20094F : 1787T) °
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32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT’'D)
Share option schemes of the Company (CONT'D)

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the
services received is measured based on the Black-Scholes
pricing model.

Grant date
gl =Rt

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

32.

BRESTE(E)
KATZERETE(Z)

SEER 12 AR A 018 B B 2 A T BB 2%
BRI Y AT BEE o FTE R
2 AFEEDRENE-F BT EER S
5 o

15.10.2008
2008 10H15H

Bz AFEERER

Fair value at measurement dates (HK$) RETEBHZAFEE (Bx) 0.005
Share price (HK$) E (Bx) 0.400
Exercise price (HK$) TR E OBT) 0.400
Expected volatility TR IE 47.68%
Expected option life (years) TAEtREARREEARR (4F) 1
Expected dividend yield ?Eﬁﬁﬁn SES 6.34%
Risk-free interest rate [ Bgx 1| = 1.14%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company's share price over the previous one
year. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of
non transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

The Group recognised total expense of nil (2009: HK$3,000)
for the year in relation to share options granted by the
Company.
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32.

N

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT’'D)

Share option scheme of The Singing Machine Company,
Inc. (“SMC"”), a52.21% (2009: 52.4%) owned subsidiary
of the Company

SMC's share option scheme was approved by SMC's shareholders
at the special meeting held on 6 September 2001 (the “SMC
Scheme”). The SMC Scheme was developed to provide a
means whereby the directors and selected employees, officers,
consultants, and advisors of SMC may be granted incentive
or non-qualified stock options to purchase common stock of
SMC. The SMC Scheme authorises an aggregate of 1,950,000
shares of SMC’'s common stock and a maximum of 450,000
shares to any one individual in any one fiscal year.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each participant in
any 12 months period up to the date of the grant will be
300,000 shares.

The period within which the shares must be taken up
under an option is any period as determined by the Board
of SMC, which will not be more than 10 years (or 5 years
in the case of a holder with 10% or more of the common
stock) from the date on which the option is granted. The
option may be exercised by the grantee at any time during
the option period. Each option vested in one year from the
date of grant.

The subscription price of the share options is determined by
SMC'’s Stock Option Committee, which consists of two or
more directors chosen by the Board of SMC. The subscription
price of the share options will be no less than the closing
price of SMC's shares on the offer date (or, if granted to a
holder of 10% or more of the common stock, the subscription
price will be no less than 110% of the closing price of SMC's
shares on the offer date).

32.

BRESHE(E

X A 7 ¥ H52.21% (2009 : 52.4%)
## 2 M B 2 "The Singing Machine
Company, Inc. ([SMC) Z iRt &

SMCE R # T EIE R2001F9 6B £1T2
B R 4F B A& EESMCRR B #t A ([SMCET
Zll) o SMCEHEITN4 TES - KHhEES -
=HRAE - B REAASE S EEGR
LA RBESMCE B 2 75 & ° SMCEH &l
FHEA 1,950,000 SMCE B - MEH
A TR SR E E ] B & =m450,0000% %

{/\ ®

REBRERLZAMMNI2ZEAR &2 8
ATEFAREREMETRETETZRS
%15 8 B # /300,0008% °

BRENTESHRASMCES RAE @
TRAIARE BT EBRI10F (R iWAIFAEE
BRI0%HIA E2FE A BIRSE) o &
A AT R B AR 4 EA PR A9 ] BRE £ 9T 168 BB AR
o ZBRERAETEARE—FANES -

BREZARBEBASMCZRBEZE SR
FZEEHSMCEERMIEZME K
INEZEEEK - BEREZREEKTER
SMCRDRELNBEHAZ M E(SKMHEMLE T
HELAEBRIONHIAEZFEEAMS @ R
BEAIETMEBSMCEMHRELN B BIKkH
B2110%) °
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32.

120

T~

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT’'D)

Share option scheme of The Singing Machine Company,
Inc. (“SMC"), a 52.21% (2009: 52.4%) owned subsidiary

of the Company (CONT'D)

The movements of the share options granted to employees

pursuant to the SMC Scheme were as follows:

32. BRESE(E)
K A 7 F B52.21% (20094 : 52.4%)
# % 2 M B 2 "AThe Singing Machine
Company, Inc. ([SMCJ) Z R &8(#&)
BIESMCEHEIMEEMBRLERE 2 ZH)
ol

Number of share options

BREHE
Outstanding Granted Forfeited Outstanding
Exercise at beginning during during at end
Date of grant price of the year the year the year of the year
gzl -t REA] RER
7B HARTHE FRERE FAERWK 8 R1T B
uss$
e
For the year ended HZ2010F
31 March 2010 3ANBIEFE
5 September 2000 2000%9A5H 2.04 5,550 - (5,550) -
31 December 2002 2002128318 9.00 19,000 = (13,500) 5,500
19 December 2003 2003128 19H 1.97 13,680 - (7,970) 5,710
6 February 2004 200442 A6H 1.54 6,500 - - 6,500
26 February 2004 200442 A26H 1.36 20,000 - - 20,000
29 March 2004 200463 H29A 1.20 20,000 - - 20,000
29 November 2004 200411 A29H 0.75 40,000 - - 40,000
1 December 2004 2004F12A18 0.77 20,000 = = 20,000
9 May 2005 200565H9R 0.60 112,000 = (55,000) 57,000
6 June 2005 20056 H6H 0.76 30,000 - (30,000) -
31 March 2006 2006F3H31H 0.32 60,000 = = 60,000
10 April 2006 200654 A 108 0.33 186,485 - (134,485) 52,000
31 March 2007 200743H31H 0.93 60,000 - - 60,000
31 March 2008 2008F3H31H 0.45 120,000 = = 120,000
3 October 2008 2008 10A3A 0.14 300,000 - (300,000) -
31 March 2009 200943H31H 0.1 120,000 - - 120,000
31 March 2010 201043 A31H 0.03 - 60,000 - 60,000
1,133,215 60,000 (546,505) 646,710
Exercisable at the end REELEA] FATHE
at the year 586,710
Weighted average exercise MEFHIHEE (Ex)
price (US$) 0.58 0.03 0.53 0.56
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32. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT’'D)

Share option scheme of The Singing Machine Company,
Inc. (“SMC"”), a52.21% (2009: 52.4%) owned subsidiary

of the Company (CONT’'D)

32. BRESTE(EZ
K A 7 F B52.21% (20094 : 52.4%)
# % 2 M B 2 "The Singing Machine
Company, Inc. ([SMCJ) ZERAE&8I(#&)

Number of share options

BREHE
Outstanding Granted Forfeited Outstanding
Exercise at beginning during during at end
Date of grant price of the year the year the year of the year
Rt B8 REA] RER
IfEE HATE FASEE FASRY fe RAT B
uss$
eV
For the year ended HZE20094F
31 March 2009 3A3EIEFE
5 September 2000 200049 A5H 2.04 36,150 - (30,600) 5,550
11 September 2002 200269H11H 11.09 30,000 - (30,000) -
31 December 2002 20026124318 9.00 89,140 = (70,140) 19,000
7 March 2003 2003%3A7H 5.60 30,000 - (30,000) -
18 April 2003 2003F4HF18H 7.20 10,000 - (10,000) -
19 December 2003 20035124 19H 1.97 35,540 = (21,860) 13,680
6 February 2004 20042 A6H 1.54 6,500 - - 6,500
26 February 2004 20042 A26H 1.36 40,000 - (20,000) 20,000
29 March 2004 200443 H29H 1.20 20,000 = - 20,000
26 April 2004 2004F4F26H 1.05 12,000 = (12,000) =
29 November 2004 2004511 A29H 0.75 60,000 - (20,000) 40,000
1 December 2004 2004512418 0.77 20,000 = - 20,000
9 May 2005 2005F5H9H 0.60 182,000 = (70,000) 112,000
6 June 2005 200556 H6H 0.76 30,000 - - 30,000
20 January 2006 200651 H20H 0.34 30,000 - (30,000) -
31 March 2006 2006F3H31H 0.32 80,000 - (20,000) 60,000
10 April 2006 20064 A 108 0.33 336,485 - (150,000) 186,485
31 March 2007 2007%3H31H 0.93 80,000 = (20,000) 60,000
31 March 2008 2008%3H31H 0.45 120,000 - - 120,000
3 October 2008 2008 10A3H 0.14 - 300,000 - 300,000
31 March 2009 2009%3H31H 0.11 = 120,000 - 120,000
1,247,815 420,000 (534,600) 1,133,215
Exercisable at the end PMEERRA] T
at the year 713,215
Weighted average exercise IETHITHRE (F71T)
price (US$) 1.67 0.13 2.79 0.58
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32.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT'D) 32. BRESHEI(E)
Share option scheme of The Singing Machine Company, K A 7B & B552.21% (20094 : 52.4%)
Inc. (“SMC"), a 52.21% (2009: 52.4%) owned subsidiary # 2= 2 fff B @ "The Singing Machine
of the Company (CONT'D) Company, Inc. ([SMCJ) Z R &8(#&)
The above options were granted for an exercise period of N EERERERESEBHETFRT
ten years from the date on which the options are vested. f# o
No share options have been granted to the directors of the RNAEWERIBSMCETEIE TEFEME
Company pursuant to the SMC Scheme. A o
The fair value of services received in return for share options TEESREMBZLERE S AFEEIZE
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share PR E 2 A FEEE - TSR
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the BZAFEEDERANR-FENTEEERN
services received is measured based on the Black-Scholes fhgt e
pricing model.
Fair value of share options and assumptions: B2 A EELRR
Grant date 3.10.2008 31.3.2009 31.3.2010
20084 20094F 20104

& B A 10A3H 3A31H 3A31H
Fair value at measurement date (US$) REr=HEZ

NFBEGET) 0.04 0.03 0.02
Share price (US$) & B (ZET) 0.14 0.11 0.03
Exercise price (US$) TEECEET) 0.14 0.11 0.03
Expected volatility TEETR I8 70.22% 80.07% 268.4%
Expected option life (years) TE 5T B AR A BARR (5F) 1 1 1
Expected dividend yield TEHA AR B & 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate 42 [ e 1) = 1.4% 0.6% 0.4%
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32.

33.

N

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (CONT’D)

Share option scheme of The Singing Machine Company,
Inc. (“SMC"), 2 52.21% (2009: 52.4%) owned subsidiary
of the Company (CONT'D)

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the SMC's share price over the previous one
year. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted,
based on management’s best estimate, for the effects of
non transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural
considerations. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

The Group recognised total expense of HK$73,000 (2009:
HK$139,000) for the year in relation to share options
granted by SMC.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the borrowings disclosed in note 28 net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to shareholders
of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves
and accumulated profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

32.

33.

BRESE(E)

AR A 7 # F52.21% (20094 : 52.4%)

# %= Z M B 2 "The Singing Machine
Company, Inc. ([SMCJ) ZERAE&8I(#&)

BEREDRASMCIRERBE —F 2B
SLRBEE o LEAMAERHRZERE
ERTEERITE TERILITAZE
AREHNZE[BETARE - TBREBAR
RZEFHAEEHAFEEZGBRER

By 486
o

AEERNFAFSMCE 2 BB I iR
(32 4 %8 /373,000 7T (20094 : 139,000
ABIT)

EXEKRER
REEEAREE S ESBE AR EERD
EREETE  BERAEECEBAFEL
B2% NMARRGERARLR - NEEE
BECRBE B K FAER o

AEEZEARBERREAEFR(BERLER
(K28 E) MR KRS FER
BIRARARABRREGHES(EERCEITR
- ERERRFEN) o

ARREZREHRBMABEARE - RIZ2—
BORESEREARAN RS REARMM S
ZER - AREEBEBRERSE - BITHKR
7~ BRI - BITHERKERREER
FSHA - HEBEARRBELFE -
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 34, €@ TR
Categories of financial instruments LT ENER
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Financial assets TREE
Available-for-sale investments AHEEZRE 24,046 24,048
Investments held for trading HIEEBEZKE 13,877 6,955
Financial assets designated at fair EE BB AFEEA
value through profit or loss Bz emERE 3 798
Loans and receivables (including cash Bz & WK E
and cash equivalents) (BB kReEFHBHEER) 163,998 247,607
Financial liabilities =L
Derivative financial instruments MEeRIA 275 50
Other financial liabilities at REHK ARSI BR 2
amortised cost Hit&ma s 315,600 457,477
Financial risk management objectives and policies MERRERBEREE
The Group’s major financial instruments include debtors AREEBFZTES T A6 EEWIRE RIR
and deposits, amounts due from/to associates, available- & B EMNBEARKIE  AHEEZ
for-sale investments, investments held for trading, derivative KE  BFIEEEZKRE - mi(ﬁ mTHE-¥5
financial instruments, financial assets designated at fair EREAFEEFAEBZCEREE « R
value through profit or loss, bank balances and cash, THEERRS  ENERHE - BITEXRE
creditors, bank overdrafts and borrowings. Details of these B HES T EFBEREBNERE - &
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The ZESR T AEBERRERKER 2 BRE
risks associated with these financial instruments and the RTX - BEEEEERERZERR - R
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. DEEERETEERE - AR 2 BEHE
The management manages and monitors these exposures to L FFHE] ©

ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner. The Group's overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D) 3. €I AE(E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies MERREEEEREE(Z)
(CONT’D)
Currency risk EHER
Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency EARSRHBAR Y SHEERS BN
denominated monetary assets and liabilities, which expose KEDIE - B A E B E Y NERR o
the Group to foreign currency risk.
The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign currency REBEUIEHE EBREEREEA G
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities (FEREFERNATRIARER  B5E
(mainly represented by intra-group current accounts, trade WEETE - /T4 % SO ENEERES)
receivables, bank balances, trade payables and borrowings) RBLEF Y ETMENT
at the reporting date are as follows:
2010 2009
Assets  Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE afs EE =L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T T THT
Canadian dollars mE Xz 61 - 5,939 549
Euro BT 92 - 94 =
Hong Kong dollars BT 249,799 424,969 221,791 428,149
Japanese dollars H 2,464 1,398 1,523 1,247
Macao pataca BT 4,339 - 17 =
Renminbi ARHE 50 22 169 -
Singapore dollars A3 T 1,021 - 206 =
Swiss Franc 5 BB 223 - 122 =
United States dollars T 257,304 41,498 285,276 89,756
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34.

\

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

Currency risk (CONT'D)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The group entities are mainly exposed to foreign currency
risk from Canadian dollars, Hong Kong dollars, Macao pataca
and United States dollars. Under the pegged exchange rate
system, the financial impact on exchange difference between
Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars will be immaterial
and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been prepared.

The following table details the group entities’ sensitivity to
a 5% increase and decrease in Canadian dollars, Hong Kong
dollars and Macao pataca against each group entity’s functional
currency (including Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi). 5%
is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes
only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5%
change in foreign currency rates. A positive number below
indicates a decrease in loss for the year where Canadian
dollars and Macao pataca strengthen 5% against each group
entity’s functional currency and a negative number below
indicates an increase in loss for the year when Hong Kong
dollars strengthen 5% against each group entity’s functional
currency. For a 5% weakening of Canadian dollars, Hong
Kong dollars and Macao pataca against each group entity’s
functional currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the loss for the year.
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34.

N

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’'D)

SWMITAE)

BHEEREEBEERBEG

,‘[ljm

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)
Currency risk (CONT'D) E#E R (&)
Sensitivity analysis (CONT'D) HBEZH ()
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiERT FH&T
Canadian dollars mEXT 3 270
Hong Kong dollars BT (8,759) (10,318)
Macao pataca RFITT 217 1

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group has cash flow interest rate risk on floating-rate
borrowings and bank overdrafts. The Group currently does
not have any policy on cash flow hedges of interest rate risk.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate risk should

the need arise.

The interest expenses on the Group’s floating-rate borrowings
are mainly linked with Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate.

BEEERS  FHEAZRARYERRFEANZ
Rk BBRESTAIREREEGINERR

REREFEEMB
AEEFREERRTEAERSREN
g o A5 B B A IS BREE (] BR B h
NEREBRZASRE - AT EERESET
MERRE  RAEFREREBEIRERRNE
[\ B e

AEBFEREEZMNEAXEIERETER
TTREFBMEHE -
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34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

Cash flow interest rate risk (CONT'D)
Sensitivity analysis (CONT'D)

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for floating-rate borrowings
and bank overdrafts at the end of the reporting period (notes
28 and 29). The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase
or decrease represents the management'’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the Group’s loss for
the year ended 31 March 2010 would increase/decrease by
HK$892,000 (2009: HK$1,390,000). This is mainly attributable
to the Group's exposure to interest rates on its floating-rate
borrowings and bank overdrafts.

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent interest rate risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Price risk

The Group’s derivative financial instruments, financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss,
held-for-trading investments and certain available-for-sale
investments are measured at fair value at the end of the
reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to price
risk. The management manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with different risk profiles. The
price risk exposure of listed shares included in available-for-
sale investments to price risk is insignificant, accordingly no
sensitivity analysis is presented.
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34.

N

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

Price risk (CONT’'D)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to price risk at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective financial instruments had been
5% higher/lower, loss for the year ended 31 March 2010
would decrease/increase by HK$680,000 (2009: HK$385,000)
as a result of the changes in fair value of derivative financial
instruments, financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss and held-for-trading investments.

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent price risk as the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations
as at 31 March 2010 and 2009 in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit
limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt and other receivables
at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

34.
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34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(CONT'D)

Credit risk (CONT'D)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in North America. The trade debtors
located in North America accounted for 73% (2009: 47 %)
of the Group’s total trade debtors as at 31 March 2010. The
Group also has concentration of credit risk by customers as
24% (2009: 33%) and 31% (2009: 45%) of the total trade
debtors was due from the Group’'s largest customer and
the five largest customers respectively. In the opinion of
the directors, all five largest customers are customers with
good reputation and creditability.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains sufficient reserve of cash and adequate
committed line of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirement in the short and long
term. The Group finances its working capital requirements
through a combination of funds generated from operations
and borrowings. The management monitors the utilisation of
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-derivative
financial liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

For derivative instruments settle on a net basis, undiscounted
net cash outflows are presented.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(CONT'D)

Liquidity risk (CONT’D)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

SRMIAE)
MHAREE R EREE(E)

RBESRR(E)
MEBEE R FIE @R

Total
Effective Repayable  Less than 1-3 3 months Over undiscounted  Carrying
interest rate on demand 1 month months  to 1 year 1year cash flows  amounts
AERES
ERFE REXEE HWMEAR 1-388 3fEAZE1E SME MELR REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% THL THAL THL THL THL THT THL
2010 2010%
Non-derivative FTESRER
financial liabilities
Creditors and R REREER
accrued charges - 10,595 15,955 17,887 48,747 - 93,184 93,184
Amounts due to associates  EEEARIEE - 2,809 - - - - 2,809 2,809
Borrowings 9 2.2 27,886 92,820 94,972 5,015 - 220,693 219,389
Bank overdrafts RITEX 5.0 218 - - - - 218 218
41,508 108,775 112,859 53,762 - 316,904 315,600
Derivatives - net settlement fT£IE-UFERELE
Options Bk 275 - - - - 275 275
2009 20095
Non-derivative FTESBAR
financial liabilities
Creditors and EREERETER
accrued charges - 32,575 23,471 33,749 38,776 - 128,577 128,577
Amounts due to associates  [EfEEE A RIRIE - 2,809 - - - - 2,809 2,809
Borrowings EE 2.0 - 87,771 148,589 65,360 29,225 330,945 326,091
35,384 111,248 182,338 104,136 29,225 462,331 457,477
Derivatives - net settlement  fTATA-WFEREELE
Options Bk 50 = = = = 50 50
/\ —®-mEEE AREMARAT 131
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34.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’'D)

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

° the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded on active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask prices,
respectively;

o the fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments and financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss)
are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis;
and

o the fair values of derivative instruments and financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
are determined by securities brokers using valuation
models based on inputs such as share price, volatility,
dividend yield of the underlying equity securities.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate to their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair
value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to
which the fair value is observable.
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34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’'D)
Fair value (CONT'D)

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position (CONT'D)

o Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

° Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

34.

ERMIE(E)

NEEEE)

REEMBRRBRIERZ AL EETE

(%)

. FE—RAFEEFEDNREREE
ERBERERMSEZHRE(REH
B)EHESE -

iy

. F_RRAFEEFEDRERSE —
AP RE AN B (AVER) HH
E(EREREE BRI ZEER
BEEEBGEE -

. F=RRAFEEFENREMGEET
EME 2 BE BREILFREAE
RZMSBBE/HZEENBER
B(MABRZEE) -

At 31 March 2010
7A2010F3H31H

Level 1 Level 2 Total

B4 FH et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHBIT FH&T FHEIT

Investments held for trading FHIEEEZRE 13,877 = 13,877
Financial assets designated at BERKEATFEE AR

fair value through profit or loss ~ Z &R & E - 3 3

13,877 3 13,880

Derivative financial liabilities PTESRBEE 275 = 275

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 in the

current year.
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35. DEEMED PARTIAL DISPOSAL OF A 35 #EAABLHEHWBARNHKRES

SUBSIDIARY
During the year, SMC issued an aggregate of 136,362 shares F R SMCE # 17 & #£136,362/% (2009
(2009: 2,300,556 shares) to certain independent third parties, F 12,300,556 ) FTETRBILE
accordingly, the shareholding held by the Group was diluted =F Bl AEEMFER2RES #
and resulted in a loss on deemed partial disposal amounting e SAEESEESHEALEERE AR
to HK$7,000 (2009: HK$150,000), net of attributable goodwill A 21D #E &= 2 &5 87,0007 7T (20094 :
of HK$57,000 (2009: HK$505,000). The loss on deemed 150,000/ 7T ) & J& 15 /& & % {857,000
partial disposal was calculated as the difference between 75 75 (20094 : 505,000/ 70 ) ° #48 & i
the Group's share of net assets in SMC, prior to and after EWBARPHER ZBEBIIIRENRSMC
each additional issue of shares by SMC. BITREINRMDAIE  AEEEGESMCEE
FEZERENE -
36. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 36. BARKIE
2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of REEYE  BERZBEED
acquisition of property, BEREHGEMBRERBEZ
plant and equipment contracted for BARRX
but not provided in the
consolidated financial statements 706 3,229
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37. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 37.

As lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of rented premises as follows:

KERNEE

fEBEMEA
REBERER - REBBET T HEEZ B &
TAYMELERLBER TS BB 2 &ER
SEEMAT :

2010 2009

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBx FAT

Within one year —F R 8,290 8,362
In the second to fifth years inclusive FEFAF (BRMEREBEEA) 17,567 19,661
25,857 28,023

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office and warehouses. Leases are negotiated
for terms ranging from one to five years (2009: one to five
years) and rentals are fixed over the lease terms.

As lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

REBONTEAEBZHRAERREZE
NHlE  BODNKEBREER—FELF
(2009 : —EHF) > MAEASREHHR
EBEIEH °

ERHAA

RBEBRRR - REAEERBERFT A
BEEREHA - T 5 B R Z R R &
EEZOT :

2010 2009

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBx FAET

Within one year —F R 4,653 4,060
In the second to fifth years inclusive FEFAF (BRMEREBEEA) 2,510 127
7,163 4,187

These properties have committed tenants for terms ranging
from one to two years (2009: one to two years).

A\ e T T
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38.

39.

136

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group pledged
certain assets with the following carrying values to secure
the general credit facilities granted to the Group and the
margin accounts with securities brokers:

38.

EEERH

RIS ERIR - AEBIERE T AR AR
B REERARGEBRERBEOZE
R REAEZREBMT :

2010 2009
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Bills discounted with recourse and BREZERITUERER
factored debtor balances B AL R FE U AR 1B 45 4 24,339 38,953
Investments held for trading HIEEBEZRE 4,989 3,204
Financial assets designated at fair BE AR AFEERA
value through profit or loss Bz emERE 3 798
Deposits with securities brokers BIEREWARIE
as included in debtors, Be REMNRIEHRZ
deposits and prepayments DAL 2R E 2,806 3,034

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group participates in the MPF Scheme implemented by
the Hong Kong Government for all qualifying employees in
Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of trustee.
The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs with a
cap of monthly contribution HK$1,000 to the MPF Scheme
for employees except for executive directors of the Company,
for which there is no cap on monthly contribution.

The employees employed in the PRC subsidiaries are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated
by the PRC government. The PRC subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their basic payroll to
the retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefits schemes is to make the required contributions
under the schemes.
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Mr. Lau Sak Hong, Philip, a substantial shareholder
of the Company, has provided a personal guarantee
to indemnify the Group for any impairment of an
unlisted available-for-sale investment to the extent
of HK$15 million (2009: HK$15 million).

The Group maintained current accounts with associates.
Their balances as at 31 March 2010 are set out in
the consolidated statement of financial position with
the terms disclosed in note 24.

During the year, the Group paid salaries and other
short term employee benefits, including share-based
payments, of HK$1,099,000 (2009: HK$1,778,000) to
certain close family members of Mr. Lau Sak Hong,
Philip, a director of the Company, as employees of
the Group.

On 25 September 2008, Starlight Industrial Holdings
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
effected the acquisition of the remaining 20% equity
interest in Success Base Industries Limited (“Success
Base”), a then non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, from Success Base’s other shareholders
(including one shareholder being entitled to exercise
or control 15% of the voting power of Success Base)
for a consideration of HK$1,600,000. Upon completion
of the acquisition, Success Base became a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company.

Compensation of key management personnel
Details of the remuneration of key management

personnel, who are the executive directors, during
the year were set out in note 9.

40. AEALIRS

(a)

(b)

(0)

(d)

(e)

AAREERFRBAGREEREAE
Brz—mEFLEmaHEEREZH
B M#HE A FEREEE 15,000,000/
J0(2009%F : 15,000,000/ 7T) °

AEE MR E QAT FEREKIE - R
2010F3HA31H + EFREIBEE %
PIRERE BB AR IR KA - H AR
R FE24 % 55 -

FA - AEBRARAEERHEL
EZRORRERBIERAKERE
i A 1% S S A5 2 3 B e L 4t K2 HA 4
BRAMBEARMN N2 MR R
1,099,0007% 7£ (20094 : 1,778,000
BIT) °

720084 9A25H © AR KB AE R
REARAR 22 EMBR R )ﬁlﬁ
BEXEERAR(ES] A2

%quakzéM¢%Aﬂ>ZE1mﬁx?5
(PRE—BAETERERES 2

15% % 2/ 2 R ) WIEE KT
20% Az - R{EA1,600,000/%8
T RERKBER - B8 AT AN
NAlZEEWBR A
FTEEEAS 2N

FR TEEEAS -
2B IBERMIFE9 o
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41.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 March 2010, the following significant

events took place:

(@)

Starlight International Holdings Limited Annual Repor
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Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 23 June
2010, the par value of each of the existing shares
in issue is reduced from HK$0.40 to HK$0.10 by
the cancellation of HK$0.30 of the paid up capital
on each issued share and each unissued share of
HK$0.40 each is subdivided into 4 adjusted shares of
HK$0.10 each (the “Capital Reorganisation”). Upon
completion of the Capital Reorganisation at 5:00
p.m. on 23 June 2010, the authorised share capital of
the Company becomes HK$500,000,000 divided into
5,000,000,000 adjusted shares of HK$0.10 each, of
which 785,088,828 adjusted shares of HK$0.10 are
in issue. The credit arising from the capital reduction
is credited to the contributed surplus account of the
Company.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the same
special general meeting of the Company referred
to in (a) above, the proposed issue of offer shares
at a price of HK$0.12 per offer share on the basis
of 4 offer shares for every 5 adjusted shares (the
“Open Offer”) is approved. The Open Offer has been
completed on 21 July 2010 and 628,071,062 offer
shares were issued. The proceeds from the Open
Offer provide additional working capital to finance
the Group’s daily operations.

41.
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Place of
incorporation
or registration/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/

42. FEKHRERQ T

RRARZETEMB R

Attributable

equity interest

ARBOT :

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
LB AL B At BRTEBR AEEEMN
Bt /8 2 ) = 7 LV —F 3.5 RA/EMEAEE R HE FTEXK
2010 2009
ACME Delight Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding
HEBR AT e 28T REER
Cosmo Communications United States US$1,571,000 93.8% 93.8% Trading in electrical
Corporation of America/ appliances and
Canada investment holding
XB/meEX 1,571,000% T BREME S RIREER
Ever Solid Limited*** Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
KEBER AR ** £ 10,000 7T REER
Hyundai Household Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Trading in electrical
Improvement Limited*** appliances
e 28T BEREME D
Korrigan Industrial Holdings Hong Kong HK$25,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
BNYEEXERAF s 25,000,000/ 7T REER
Master Light Enterprises Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited
EECEBRAR BB 28T REZR

A\ =l
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42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D) 42. TEMBAR (&)

Place of Nominal value of
Attributable

equity interest

incorporation issued ordinary

or registration/ share capital/

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
SER BRI S EE BETEER AEBEERL
MEARER B/ &% RE/EMEAEE RARE R TEXB
2010 2009
Merrygain Holding Company ~ Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 96% 96%  Property investment
Limited
YEERERAR &b 5,000,000/ 7T MERE
Nice States Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
BB 2B MERE
Niceday Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding
EHERAA BB 2B REER
Noble Win Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
BRERAF e 2B MERE
Ram Light Management British Virgin us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited Islands
KRERERAA HBRBARES (E REER
SIH Limited British Virgin HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Islands
HERBRAS 10,000 7T REER
Star Fair Electronics Hong Kong HK$15,090,000 100% 100%  Trading in electronic
Company Limited products
EEETARAR Bk 15,090,000/ 7T EfEmES
Star Fair Manufacturing Jersey/PRC £12 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Company Limited electronic products
BESR,/HEH 1258 ETERBERKEE
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
HZE2010F3A31HIEFE

42.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

Place of
incorporation

or registration/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary
share capital/

Attributable
equity interest

42. FEHMBELAT(E)

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
SER BRI BT ERTERR AEEEG
MELRERE i,/ &% RA/EMEAEE AR TEXB
2010 2009
Star Legend Offshore British Virgin uss$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited Islands
HEEBRHES Ev REZR
Star Light Electronics Hong Kong HK$13,000,000 100% 100%  Trading in electronic
Company Limited products
HREFERAF s 13,000,000/ 7 BEfEMES
Starleaf Development Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding
EEBRARAA & 28T RERZR
Starlight eTech (Holdings) British Virgin Us$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited Islands
HEABARAHS (E REZR
Starlight Exports Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Trading in electronic
products and property
investment
Fri O ER A A A 28T EFERBHRMERE
Starlight Industrial Holdings Hong Kong HK$73,920,192 100% 100% Investment holding
Limited
HHEEERATF £ 73,920,192/ 7T REER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VRN

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZE2010F3A31HILEFE

42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D) 42. TEMBLR (&)
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation issued ordinary Attributable
or registration/ share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
R ail) A BETEBER REEEL
MEARER V¢ $::t: RA/EMEAEE RARE R TEXH
2010 2009
Starlight Manufacturers Jersey/PRC HK$100,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Limited electronic products
BES,/HE 100,000% 7T EFERRERKE
Starlight Marketing Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Trading in electronic
Development Limited products
AETSHERAERAD A A 28T ETERMRS
Starlight Marketing Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Securities trading and
trading in electronic
products
FETISHEERRA A e 2B BHEERETERED
Starlight Marketing Macao Macau HK$100,000 100% 100%  Trading in electronic
Commercial Offshore products
Limited***
FHR 5 e ORI BE = P 100,000/ 7 BEFEMES
HERBARAR***
Starlight R&D Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100%  Material sourcing and
trading in electronic
products and
components
HEAMFAERAF G 10,0007 7T WEREE R
ETERRIHES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
EE2010F3A31HILFE

42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D)

Place of

incorporation

or registration/

Nominal value of
issued ordinary

share capital/

Attributable
equity interest

42. FEHBAT(E)

Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
AR R L B aE ERTEER REBERL
MEAREE it/ 2 2 R,/ EAEE BRAESR TEXH
2010 2009
Starlight Video Limited Hong Kong HK$4 100% 100%  Provision of nominee
services for group
companies and trading
of DVD products
HEZEERAT 5 4BTT REERAIRHERRE
REREEERE S
Starlite Consumer Electronics ~ Cayman Islands HK$2 100% 100%  Trading in electronic
(USA) Inc. products
HEHSE 28T ETEMEH
Starlite Consumer Electronics  United States Us$20 100% 100%  Trading in electronic
(USA) Inc. of America products
E3E 20%7T ETEMED
Starshow Investment Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of nominee
Limited services for group
companies
EEREERAT BB 2B REERARERE RS
Success Base Industries Hong Kong HK$4,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Limited plastic products
EHEXERAT 30 4,000,000/ 7T PREMBENHE

T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZE2010F3A31HILEFE

42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D) 42. TEMBLR (&)
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation issued ordinary Attributable
or registration/ share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
LA BE AL B At BRTER AEEEMN
MEL AR it/ & %1% Hﬁl‘/a‘fﬂﬂﬁﬂiﬁﬁ R ARE & FTEXK
2010 2009
The Singing Machine United States US$375,857 52.21% 52.4%  Trading in consumer
Company, Inc. (“SMC")** of America (2009: US$374,494) karaoke audio
375,857% 7T equipment
X (2009% : 374,494%7T) HERHOKEZREE S
Top Spring Technology British Virgin uss$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited Islands
ERGEBRHES (E REEKR
Starfair Manufacturing PRC* HK$33,300,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(Panyu) Company electronic products
Limited
BMEBSFHIERRAR i * 33,300,000 7T BEFEMBENHEE
EREGTEFMERRAR  PRC* RMB31,750,000 100% 100%  Property investment
I+ AR#%31,750,0007C MERE
Panyu Success Base Plastic PRC* HK$20,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Company Limited plastic products
EREGERBHRAER AR R * 20,000,000/ 7T PREMRERHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2010
B ZE2010F3A31HIEFE

42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D) 42. FTEMBEAR (&)
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation issued ordinary Attributable
or registration/ share capital/ equity interest
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital to the Group Principal activities
LB AL B AT BERTEBR AEEEMN
Bt /8 2 ) = 7 LV —E 3.4 RA,/EMEAHEE AR & FTEXK
2010 2009
Panyu Starfair Electronics PRC* HK$21,500,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Manufacturing Company electronic products
Limited
ERERERERR AR e+ 21,500,000/ 7T BEFEMBENHE
& These subsidiaries are PRC wholly foreign owned & ZEMBARARPRAEIINERZE -

enterprises.

* At 31 March 2009, SMC was listed on the NYSE Amex
Equities. On 23 June 2009, SMC received a written
delisting notice from the NYSE Amex LLC. SMC did not
appeal the decision and its common stock are quoted on
the Over-the-Counter bulletin board with effect from 7
July 2009.

***  These subsidiaries ceased operations during the year
ended 31 March 2010 and were not classified as principal
subsidiaries at 31 March 2010.

* *

* k%

7200943 HA31H * SMCZENYSE
Amex Equities £ ° 74200946 A
23H ' SMCHEZENYSE Amex LLCZ
BREBHNE - SMCYERBRIAT
R LEF WHELBRE H2009F
7R7TBRESIN ZZBREE -

ZEW B R RNEZ=2010F3A31
HIEFEBERIELE - 8R20105F
3A3TATEFRAZTENRBAR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e VRN

For the year ended 31 March 2010
BZE2010F3A31HILEFE

42. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (CONT'D) 42. FEMBLAR(E)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the EFERRA RN BN E R [ %A
opinion of the directors, principally affect the results of the year or FEZEBEEEENZE B AEEE
constitute a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give EFEEEIND - EERFRSMIREE MK
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, BRRZHE  BLERBRIE -

result in particulars of excessive length.

Other than SIH Limited and Star Legend Offshore Limited which are held FRSIH Limited & Star Legend Offshore
directly by the Company, all other subsidiaries are held indirectly by the Limited R AR R EERB I - BB H A
Company. None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital outstanding BRI ARARIBERE - RAFRIA
at the end of the year or at any time during the year. FERNEMER - HERBARAERAE

BEEER -

Starlight International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2010 /\



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFMBERE

Year ended 31 March
BZE3A3MBLEE

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHT
RESULTS ¥\
Turnover ] 1,782,771 2,434,241 2,199,033 1,281,062 738,262
Profit (loss) before taxation BRBADRT (&) 90,691 119,906 64,025 (118,408) (75,712)
Taxation Fiig (11,452)  (9,715) (18,531)  (1,280)  (1,468)
Profit (loss) for the year AFEEA (BR) 79,239 110,191 45,494 (119,688) (77,180)
Attributable to: THIALREL
Owners of the Company ZN/NETE 2PN 79,141 105,196 45,914 (110,186) (67,490)
Minority interests DH R 98 4,995 (420)  (9,502)  (9,690)
79,239 110,191 45,494 (119,688) (77,180)
At 31 March
M3H31AH
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEHEEE
Total assets BERE 1,219,487 1,432,998 1,474,310 1,197,492 987,725
Total liabilities BERE 490,793 620,648 674,534 521,795 373,608
728,694 812,350 799,776 675,697 614,117
Equity attributable to owners RAREB AEIEER
of the Company 727,177 797,117 781,739 665,100 612,734
Share option reserve of a listed EmREARZ
subsidiary BRERE = 66 253 392 465
Minority interests LY R ER 1,517 15,167 17,784 10,205 918
728,694 812,350 799,776 675,697 614,117
—ER-TEEH AFMERERAT 147
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SUMMARY OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
REY) =B E

AEH
BHEHEE EiaREzs
FRHARKEZRENHE (FFR) MEME Attributable
Investment properties Gross floor Nature interest B9\
held for rental purposes area (sq. ft.) of property to the Group Category of lease

R ME LB ERE 185 2,280 [HES 100% REHHEL
Eik&EEARE13#EB - C D Commercial Long leases
Units B, C and D on

13th Floor of

Guangdong Tours Centre

No. 18 Pennington Street

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

BBRIREEEISH 5,543 [EES 100% REHHEAL
F—HL26HEA Commercial Long leases
Unit A, 26th Floor

United Centre

No. 95 Queensway, Central

Hong Kong

BERBBIEBHFRE2325% 12,079 I% 100% REHELY
HETEKRNE 1812 Industrial Long leases
18th Floor

Shing Dao Industrial Building

No. 232 Aberdeen Main Road

Aberdeen

Hong Kong

BERBBTBBHFRE2325% 12,079 I% 100% RFEHELY
HETEKRNE 1612 Industrial Long leases
16th Floor

Shing Dao Industrial Building

No. 232 Aberdeen Main Road

Aberdeen

Hong Kong

BERBBIBBHFRNE2325% 13,974 I% 100% RFEHELY
A TERE 1412 Industrial Long leases
14th Floor

Shing Dao Industrial Building

No. 232 Aberdeen Main Road

Aberdeen

Hong Kong

BERBBHFBBHFRE2325% 13,974 I% 96% REHELY
HETERE 1212 Industrial Long leases
12th Floor

Shing Dao Industrial Building

No. 232 Aberdeen Main Road

Aberdeen

Hong Kong

BB OEBRKLFKSSR 63,968 [ES 100% REHHEL
221 K% 36HER Commercial Long leases
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